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 3

                      Thursday, June 12, 2008 1 

                      MR. PRATT:  Good afternoon everyone.  My name is 2 

         Doug Pratt.  I'm the communications director from Michigan 3 

         Education Association.  I want to thank all of you for 4 

         taking time out of your schedules this afternoon to join us 5 

         to talk about the dropout crisis and what we're doing here 6 

         in the Flint area to identify the problems and make sure 7 

         that we are coming up with solutions that insure that we 8 

         graduate more students from high school.  I want to kick it 9 

         over first -- since we are here today in the Genesee ISD's 10 

         facility, I want to kick it over to Genesee ISD 11 

         superintendent Tom Svitkovich for a brief welcome. 12 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Thank you for being here.  I look 13 

         around the room and I see a whole lot of people that are 14 

         very, very interested in what goes on in alternative 15 

         education and what goes on with programs that deal with 16 

         students who are potential dropouts or dropouts or at risk 17 

         of dropping out.  So there is a great deal of interest in 18 

         this room, and I appreciate you being here.  On behalf of 19 

         our Board of Education and all of the various initiatives 20 

         here in Genesee County, welcome to this forum.  I'm glad 21 

         you've taken time out of your very, very busy schedule to be 22 

         a part of this program.  As all hearings go, there is a 23 

         record.  So it's important that your comments become part of 24 

         that record because (inaudible) this will be used in forums 25 
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         from this point forward to craft a plan to increase our 1 

         efforts.   2 

                      And I'm also very proud that the MEA, Ed Sarpolus, 3 

         organizers came here to Genesee County so we could have our 4 

         firsthand input into what's going on with this issue.  So 5 

         again, thank you very much for being here.  Welcome.  And 6 

         we've got some light refreshments in back.  I think water 7 

         and coffee and that kind of thing.  You know where the 8 

         facilities are.  And if we can make your stay any more 9 

         comfortable, please let us know.  Again, thank you and 10 

         welcome. 11 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you.  And now we're going to 12 

         hear a brief opening statement from Michele Corey from 13 

         Michigan's Children. 14 

                      MS. COREY:  Thank you very much.  Thanks again 15 

         everybody for being here this afternoon and probably some 16 

         into the evening.  Michigan's Children, I just wanted to say 17 

         briefly, is extremely pleased to be a part of this effort 18 

         around the state to elicit some comments from communities on 19 

         this issue.  So we're very glad to be a part of this team.  20 

         And again, thank you very much for being here.   21 

                      You may have heard, and many of you already know, 22 

         about 20,000 Michigan students drop out of school each year, 23 

         many students here in Genesee County.  The impact of this 24 

         crisis on society is huge, including lower incomes for 25 
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         dropouts, local communities with fewer well-paid employees 1 

         to support local businesses, and an economy saddled with the 2 

         perception that we lack qualified employees for perspective 3 

         jobs.  It also costs taxpayers about $127,000 per dropout in 4 

         lost tax revenue and increased public health, crime and 5 

         welfare demands.  The number of our youth who are leaving 6 

         school without a diploma and their impact on our state are 7 

         staggering.  And, clearly, that's not anything that comes as 8 

         a surprise to anybody in this room.  We're here today to 9 

         act, because one dropout is too many.   10 

                      The dropout crisis is certainly a complicated 11 

         problem.  No one strategy or reform model will work for all 12 

         schools or all students.  But we shouldn't back down from 13 

         trying to fix the problem or delay acting because it's too 14 

         hard to solve.  That's why all of us as partners in this 15 

         effort want to hear your stories why students drop out, what 16 

         impact that has on your community, why do students return to 17 

         school, what works and, frankly, what doesn't.  We will 18 

         present your stories and the findings of these hearings to 19 

         political leaders and the public at the Michigan Dropout 20 

         Prevention Leadership Summit on October 20th in Lansing.  21 

         The information we gather through these hearings will inform 22 

         our leaders about how to develop the broad-based solutions 23 

         that are necessary to graduate more students from high 24 

         school who are ready to work, ready to move on to college or 25 
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         other training and be an active participant in our economy 1 

         and our society.  Thank you.  Doug? 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you very much.  Let me just take 3 

         a second.  We've introduced Tom and Michele.  I want to 4 

         introduce the rest of our panelists here this afternoon.  5 

         Next to Michele we have Steve Cook, the vice president of 6 

         the Michigan Education Association; Gary Naeyaert 7 

         of Michigan's Charter Schools, and Senator John Gleason who 8 

         represents this area in the Michigan State Senate.  So thank 9 

         you to all of our panelists for joining us this afternoon. 10 

                      Also before we get started, I do want to thank all 11 

         the sponsors of this series of hearings that's going on 12 

         around the state.  We are doing ten of these hearings.  This 13 

         is the fifth, so we've reached the halfway point.  All the 14 

         staff who have been putting this together are breathing a 15 

         sad sigh of relief.  But the MEA, the Michigan Association 16 

         of Intermediate School Administrators, the Kent Intermediate 17 

         School District, Michigan's Children, Michigan's Charter 18 

         Schools, Michigan's Promise and Michigan Future, Inc. are 19 

         all of the organizations that helped bring us all together 20 

         today.   21 

                      So how are we going to tackle this in terms of 22 

         logistics this afternoon?  Well, I have -- as you came in, 23 

         if you want to provide testimony this afternoon, you should 24 

         have filled out a speaker card.  If you haven't done that, 25 
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         not a big deal.  We can get one to you.  Just raise your 1 

         hand and I can make sure that we get one to you in a few 2 

         moments.  What I'll do, I have several cards up here.  I'm 3 

         going to call you up for five minutes of testimony.  We are 4 

         timing things to keep everything moving this evening.  There 5 

         will be someone sitting -- standing in the back corner --  6 

         Bonnie there in the back corner has a "One minute warning" 7 

         and a "Time's up" sign just to give you a cue that it's time 8 

         to wrap up.  After you provide your testimony, our panelists 9 

         may have a question or two for you just to add things to the 10 

         record.   11 

                      Again, we are recording all of this.  The goal is 12 

         to provide this testimony from across all ten hearings to 13 

         the legislature, the governor and the public at a hearing on 14 

         October 20th in Lansing.  That's a Dropout Prevention 15 

         Leadership Summit.  So we are going to be compiling all of 16 

         this, transcribing everything and providing it to 17 

         policymakers to help guide their decisions.  So please speak 18 

         clearly into the microphones.  If you have written 19 

         testimony, I can take that from you in addition to anything 20 

         you say here.  That's perfectly fine.  Our panelists, a few 21 

         of them have time constraints this evening and they have to 22 

         duck out.  But we are going to stay and record testimony 23 

         until everyone who would like to speak has had a chance to. 24 

                      And if you know other people who couldn't make it 25 
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         this evening, they can actually go online to our website, 1 

         which is www.mea.org/dropouts, to provide testimony online 2 

         so that we can add that in as well.  With that, if there are 3 

         any questions? 4 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  I don't have a question, but I do 5 

         have a comment. 6 

                      MR. PRATT:  Sure. 7 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  I may have to leave at 6:00, and 8 

         I know Dr. Wagonlander and Dr. Resmesser (phonetic) will 9 

         have to leave with me.  And I think there was some staff in 10 

         the room as well.  But tonight is our Mott Middle College 11 

         graduation, and basically (inaudible) alternative program.  12 

         It's a dropout prevention initiative, and we can't miss 13 

         graduation.  So that's where we're going to be.  And I do 14 

         apologize for that scheduling problem but there wasn't -- 15 

         there was no way to get that resolved.  16 

                      MR. PRATT:  We completely understand, and that is 17 

         an excellent segue -- thank you -- because our first two 18 

         people to provide testimony are Eric Wood and Peter Kost.  19 

         I'm sorry.  Kost.  Sorry.  I apologize in advance for 20 

         mauling names, because I'm going to do it all night.  But if 21 

         you guys can come on up, along with anybody else from Mott 22 

         Middle College, 'cause I know you guys have to jet out of 23 

         here and get to graduation.  So we'll let you guys talk 24 

         first and we'll get the evening started.  Thank you very 25 
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         much again for coming. 1 

                      MR. WOOD:  Hello.  My name is Eric Wood.  I'm a 2 

         teacher over at Mott Middle College High School, and I first 3 

         want to thank the panel for allowing me to speak today, and 4 

         I want to thank the State of Michigan for actually providing 5 

         these hearings.  What's very important to understand about 6 

         dropout prevention in the State of Michigan is that every 7 

         single child is a potential dropout and that we all have to 8 

         take the time to make sure that we do what's necessary as 9 

         not only educators but as a state in its entirety to make 10 

         sure that every single student has the opportunities to make 11 

         sure they are not one of the statistics that we're talking 12 

         about today. 13 

                      I stand before you as not only a teacher but also 14 

         a holder of a master's degree in American history and the 15 

         U.S. Constitution.  The reason I mention that is because not 16 

         very long ago, in fact, in 1991, '92, I almost became a 17 

         dropout myself.  If it wasn't for Mott Middle College High 18 

         School that I started attending in 1992 and then graduated 19 

         from in 1994, I wouldn't be standing in front of you today.  20 

         In fact, I may not even be here today.   21 

                      I say that because last night at our honors 22 

         assembly three parents individually came to me and said the 23 

         exact same thing; not that the school had done anything that 24 

         other schools weren't able to do, not that Mott Middle 25 
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         College was much unique.  It really was just that we had put 1 

         forward the effort to reach out our hands at Mott Middle to 2 

         the students that needed it to happen.  We have not only 3 

         done that locally, we've done that nationally with our 4 

         outreach efforts and also we have now spawned an additional 5 

         school here in the Flint community with the help of the 6 

         Genesee Intermediate School District.  And I know some of 7 

         them are present today, and that's the new Genesee Early 8 

         College.   9 

                      These types of initiatives, Mott Middle College 10 

         and Genesee Early College as examples, are very important 11 

         for us to try around the country and around the state.  If 12 

         we can ask the students of today to not only achieve what 13 

         they can in high school but to look beyond that into their 14 

         college careers now, not two years from now, not after 15 

         graduation, but right now, we can encourage those students 16 

         that are underserved, are at risk of dropping out to 17 

         actually achieve what they have not been ever asked to 18 

         achieve in the past.  Not only can we get them a high school 19 

         diploma, but possibly an associate's degree or at least 24, 20 

         40, 60 college credits.   21 

                      Now, I know many of you are probably parents out 22 

         in the audience and you know how expensive that college 23 

         credit can be.  So imagine if your son or daughter could 24 

         actually walk away from high school and not only holding 25 
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         that high school diploma, but also holding in their hands 1 

         either an associate's degree or some kind of college credit, 2 

         the money savings, the time savings and the leg up these 3 

         students have.  4 

                      I want to share some stats with you actually.  5 

         Today our graduating class of seniors is walking across that 6 

         stage at U of M auditorium with a combined total of 402 7 

         college credits with a GPA in college of 2.44.  Not only 8 

         that, they've achieved an overall GPA of 3.1 average across 9 

         the graduating class.  Now, that may not seem exceedingly 10 

         high.  But when you think about the fact that these students 11 

         came to us with an average GPA of 1.2 and many of them with 12 

         below a 1. GPA, that's an extraordinary event in my eyes. 13 

                      Again, I'd like to thank you.  And just remember 14 

         that not only are we standing up for each child that's in 15 

         education today, we are standing up for all of their 16 

         children as well.  Thank you. 17 

                      MR. KOST:  Hello.  My name is Pete Kost, and I'm 18 

         currently a 20-year-old senior at the University of Michigan 19 

         Flint.  I graduated last year from both Mott Middle College 20 

         with my high school diploma and from Mott Community College 21 

         with my associate's degree.  I would like to say that I 22 

         would not be here where I am today without the support I 23 

         received at Mott Middle College.   24 

                      Although I graduated from high school from Mott 25 
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         Middle College, I actually spent my freshman year at Linden 1 

         High School.  It was hell.  I had disciplinary problems and 2 

         poor grades.  I knew as well as my parents that, if I 3 

         continued my education at Linden, I would not be 4 

         academically successful or happy.  Luckily they found me an 5 

         alternative at Mott Middle College.  6 

                      When I first heard about Mott Middle College, I 7 

         thought it was a joke.  It was easy, you know.  You don't 8 

         have to do anything, just come up to class and you'll pass.  9 

         It wasn't.  I had a seriously rude awakening, because I got 10 

         kicked out within, like, three weeks.  But they did let me 11 

         back in, and I did prove myself.  I started coming to class 12 

         always, I got good grades, and I proved myself to both 13 

         faculty and my peers.  They allowed me into the Excel 14 

         program, which was an early college.  As long as you prove 15 

         yourself responsible enough to take both high school credits 16 

         and college at the same time and pass both, they would allow 17 

         you to take even more, and I did.  I got my associate's 18 

         degree a year after I should have graduated from high 19 

         school.  And I graduated with my high school diploma and my 20 

         associate's degree the same year. 21 

                      Another reason I succeeded was because the faculty 22 

         were caring and concerned.  If I needed help, they would 23 

         tutor.  If I needed a break, they would give it to me as 24 

         long as I was responsible for completing the work.  If I 25 
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         needed to talk, there was always someone to listen, whether 1 

         it was how to improve my research papers or just someone to 2 

         chat with like Mr. Fraser (phonetic), who always had time to 3 

         talk history with me.   4 

                      Once I had shown the faculty that I was 5 

         responsible and academically successful, other benefits 6 

         besides college were found.  I began to interact with both 7 

         students and faculty in other ways, too.  The students began 8 

         to ask me how to succeed in the college.  And the faculty 9 

         started to use me as a teacher's aide to Mr. VanHorn 10 

         (phonetic) where I would help him with his math class.  From 11 

         these experiences I gained not only friendship with the 12 

         teachers themselves but they also treated me as an adult 13 

         instead of a child.  The experience of being treated as an 14 

         adult made me feel just as close to the staff as I did with 15 

         my friends there.   16 

                      The reason I graduated and was personally 17 

         successful at Mott Middle College was because when I got 18 

         kicked out I realized I would drop out if I went back to 19 

         Linden, and I really wanted to graduate.  I realized that I 20 

         needed to work in order to succeed in school, and I gained 21 

         the support of both the faculty and -- and I gained the 22 

         support of the faculty in my pursuit for graduation by my 23 

         actions.  They helped me to succeed by always being there 24 

         for me when I needed it and adding many incentives to 25 
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         continue the path I had chosen.  That's the reason why I've 1 

         succeeded. 2 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Hello, Peter.  My name is John 3 

         Gleason.  A few questions I have, because I have young 4 

         children at home now.  I think there's two different 5 

         categories of dropouts; those that leave the school and 6 

         those that drop out but still come to school every day.  Did 7 

         you have any early support, any early childhood involvement 8 

         with formal education opportunities, pre-K or any early 9 

         childhood intervention from the school district? 10 

                      MR. KOST:  No; just my parents.  They really 11 

         pushed me to succeed in school.  And I did up until middle 12 

         school, and then it really just got harder after that. 13 

                      MR. GLEASON:  And then I'd like to ask you, 14 

         because conversations I've had with parents -- and I notice 15 

         you wear glasses.  A lot of times we have young children who 16 

         have vision and hearing difficulties.  Did you have that 17 

         issue?  I see you're wearing glasses today.  Did you have 18 

         any problem with your vision in trying to pay attention in 19 

         school? 20 

                      MR. KOST:  Yeah.  No, because I had glasses from 21 

         about the time I was 6.  So, I mean, my vision was corrected 22 

         early on and it made it easier to learn.  So does that 23 

         answer your question? 24 

                       MR. GLEASON:  Yeah, it does, because I think a 25 
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         lot of kids don't get that attention between the hearing and 1 

         the vision tests that they need in school.  I didn't know if 2 

         that might have been some of your complications that you got 3 

         frustrated because you really couldn't connect with the 4 

         lessons. 5 

                      MR. KOST:  I had the glasses and it helped learn.  6 

         But when I don't have them, it does -- it does cause me not 7 

         to focus. 8 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Thank 9 

         you. 10 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Just from a human nature's 11 

         point, what are you -- what goals are you going to pursue? 12 

                      MR. KOST:  I have two semesters at U of M before I 13 

         get my bachelor's and then I'm going right on to my 14 

         master's.  My future goal is to become a professor. 15 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  At the --  16 

                      MR. KOST:  University level. 17 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Okay.  Great.  Good luck. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Peter, while you're still 19 

         there, thank you very much for your testimony.  It's very 20 

         helpful to hear from students.  When you left the 21 

         traditional high school and were -- how long a period was it 22 

         when you were out of school? 23 

                      MR. KOST:  It was just that summer. 24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  And do you have any 25 
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         peers or friends who had similar experiences to you who 1 

         might have left school who did not come back? 2 

                      MR. KOST:  Two of my friends dropped out.  I wish 3 

         they went back, but they did not.  And I think personally it 4 

         was the same problems that I did, but I'm not positive. 5 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  If you could identify, 6 

         then, a single factor that separated you from your friends 7 

         who left and didn't come back versus you who came back and 8 

         have now succeeded, what would you say that is? 9 

                      MR. KOST:  Motivation.  I wanted -- I didn't want 10 

         to drop out, and I wanted to get my -- I wanted to be a 11 

         professor.  And I knew I couldn't if I dropped out. 12 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thank you very much. 13 

                      MR. KOST:  Yup. 14 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up -- I'm sorry.   15 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I'm sorry.  Can we ask Eric 16 

         a question? 17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Yeah; sure.  Yeah.  Come on back up. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Only because I'm fairly 19 

         still new to the policy here.  Eric, I'm not sure if --  20 

                      MR. WOOD:  And I apologize for walking away.  I 21 

         thought the format was testimony only.  So I apologize about 22 

         that. 23 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And maybe everyone in the 24 

         room is aware of this, but I'm not.  Could you describe the 25 



 17

         structure of a middle college and the functionality of a 1 

         middle college?  Because I think the concept is still to 2 

         some of us very new. 3 

                      MR. WOOD:  A middle college as it started was a 4 

         program designed out of the middle college consortium.  It's 5 

         a national consortium.  And the attempt is to get high 6 

         school age students a different approach to education.  It's 7 

         a traditional -- I'm sorry.  It's a nontraditional approach 8 

         to public education.  It is still a public high school, but 9 

         essentially what we do is we take public high school 10 

         students from around an area, for example, Genesee County 11 

         and the surrounding counties, we bring them to a community 12 

         college or a college campus and we integrate them not only 13 

         with the high school curriculum but also into the college 14 

         experience as well so that it literally becomes a high 15 

         school-college combination school where they either are 16 

         doing dual enrolling at first or, in the new process with 17 

         the early college, we now have them trying to achieve as 18 

         many possible credits up then an associate's degree. 19 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And they receive that 20 

         education at the high school? 21 

                      MR. WOOD:  They receive that education through the 22 

         college and the high school is located on that college 23 

         campus and integrated into the college itself.  So there is 24 

         no separate area of the college that's just for the high 25 
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         school.  Our rooms, our teachers, our facilities, are all 1 

         integrated into the college campus.   2 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And the classes that a 3 

         middle college student would take at college level would be 4 

         taken with traditional college students in the same --  5 

                      MR. WOOD:  Yes, they would; yeah.  And they're not 6 

         (inaudible) at all.  In fact, they're put right into the 7 

         regular college classes. 8 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thank you. 9 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Does it take awhile for 10 

         them to get the confidence when you're so desperate that 11 

         you're willing to drop out?  Do you have to give them 12 

         counseling to make that adjustment when you can gear them 13 

         back up to enter that educational mode again? 14 

                      MR. WOOD:  Well, there's a learning curve.  15 

         Absolutely.  The learning curve is lessened by our ability 16 

         to have what we call focus groups or intensive education 17 

         with these students at the counseling level.  Every teacher 18 

         at our school and many of the other middle college and early 19 

         colleges around the nation actually are working not only as 20 

         teachers but also as pseudo counselors in a sense.  We have 21 

         a small group of students that we work with on a daily basis 22 

         trying to make sure that that adjustment period is lessened.  23 

         However, it does exist.  I won't lie to you.  There still is 24 

         a learning curve, especially with younger students.  The 25 
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         older students usually are the ones that come to us as a, 1 

         quote, "last chance" for their education.  They're the ones 2 

         that really put forward the effort right at first.  We don't 3 

         have a lot of problems with that.  The early younger 4 

         students, we're really trying to bring them on board, 5 

         explain they're on a college campus, explain the experiences 6 

         that they have offered to them the traditional high schools 7 

         wouldn't be able to offer, such as the college programming, 8 

         college facilities.  And what we have that's amazing here in 9 

         Flint is our access not only to Mott Community College but 10 

         also access to the University of Michigan Flint and the 11 

         Flint Cultural Center.  So we can combine all of these 12 

         different experiences into one high school college 13 

         wraparound experience that's been amazing. 14 

                      MR. GLEASON:  And obviously there would 15 

         be some family concerns?  Many of them come out of troubled 16 

         family settings? 17 

                      MR. WOOD:  Yes, they do; yes, they do. 18 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Do you ever hear of a 19 

         student and the teacher educator would say, "I know this kid 20 

         can do it.  We just need to get him in a different 21 

         environment"?  Is it driven to your organization or 22 

         sometimes, you know, if the kids don't show the initiative, 23 

         do you ever intervene and say, "We've got a place for you," 24 

         kind of a recruitment-type thing?  Do you ever do that? 25 
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                      MR. WOOD:  Many of these kids it improves their 1 

         performance in school because they're excited to get to 2 

         bridges after school -- oh, time's up.  In any case 3 

         (inaudible)  4 

  (Missing audio) 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  Any questions?  Michele? 6 

                      MS. COREY:  Thanks.  I have one question for you, 7 

         Ron.  In terms of after school programming, you said it's in 8 

         K-9, are there any thoughts about using after school and 9 

         high school for credit recovery or that sort of stuff?  Has 10 

         that been part of the conversation in Genesee County, or not 11 

         so far? 12 

                      MR. BUTLER:  No.  We haven't -- we haven't gotten 13 

         that far yet. 14 

                      MS. COREY:  It's a great program. 15 

                      MR. BUTLER:  Yeah.  Thank you. 16 

                      MS. COREY:  Thanks.   17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up we have Ryan Donlan, the 18 

         Bay-Arenac Community High School. 19 

                      MR. DONLAN:  Thank you community members.  I 20 

         appreciate the opportunity to testify today.  I am Ryan 21 

         Donlan.  I am an educator in Michigan for nearly the last 20 22 

         years.  I am (inaudible) in both traditional and charter 23 

         schools.  The former high school (inaudible) on behalf of 24 

         the Department for the Cherry Commission and was honored to 25 
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         serve in that capacity as well as a very proud member of the 1 

         committee, a very proud member in designing Michigan's new 2 

         high school graduation requirements.  Most importantly, 3 

         however, I am an educator who finds dropped out kids on the 4 

         streets, brings them into a small alternative  charter 5 

         school and makes a difference in their lives and then tries 6 

         my best to send them off to college.  We run a high school 7 

         in Essexville, Michigan, outside of Bay City, with 100 8 

         percent at risk youth population.   9 

                      Now, ladies and gentlemen, I am here not 10 

         necessarily to provide a commercial for my program today, 11 

         members of the committee, but I am here to provide some 12 

         specific information on how Michigan can respond to and 13 

         improve in short stem the current dropout crisis.  First, to 14 

         establish credibility.  I'm working with at risk kids.  We 15 

         all are at the Community High School for homeless, violent, 16 

         parents themselves marginally performing, certainly 17 

         underperforming, and the skills are just very, very low; 18 

         elementary reading and math levels when we get them.  We are 19 

         currently making adequate yearly progress.  We're in step 20 

         zero of restructuring.  We've made AYP three out of the last 21 

         four years, and we've had 100 percent junior participation 22 

         in our MEAP and our Michigan Merit exams for the last four 23 

         years.   24 

                      Having said that, what do we believe Michigan 25 
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         should do?  First of all, we humbly as that we all in 1 

         Michigan eliminate forever more the soft bigotry of low 2 

         expectations.  Even in alternative high schools we must 3 

         embrace the high standards of the Michigan Merit Curriculum 4 

         and use the new graduation requirements as an opportunity.  5 

         We must unapologetically prepare every student for college.  6 

                      Secondly, to stem the dropout crisis, we need to 7 

         shift our paradigms, especially those of us in alternative 8 

         schools away from building self-esteem in students, which is 9 

         good in and of itself, however, we need to shift them toward 10 

         building self-efficacy in students.  The belief that 11 

         students can overcome and transcend their current lots in 12 

         life through effort and hard work.  Self-efficacy we believe 13 

         is the key to eradicating under performance.  Self-efficacy 14 

         we believe is the only method in which we can offer students 15 

         the resiliency to get up that very next morning after an 16 

         abjectly awful night and come back to school the next day. 17 

                      I would like to mention specifically the process 18 

         communication model from Keller Communications out of Little 19 

         Rock, Arkansas.  PCM is an acronym that we are going to be 20 

         researching over the next year with the help of a Department 21 

         of Education Dissemination grant to see if it makes a 22 

         difference, and we believe it has.   23 

                      Third, to stem the dropout crisis we must in 24 

         Michigan establish a path goal model of local and state 25 
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         responsibility for the education of kids.  Now, the state 1 

         should establish the goal, or the what.  The state is the 2 

         boss, and we understand that.  However, it should be 3 

         completely left up to the local districts, buildings and 4 

         public school academies on the how, the when and the under 5 

         what conditions of the educational delivery.   6 

                      It used to be an unhealthy system where local 7 

         units pretty much determined both the path and the goal.  I 8 

         would argue now that it's pretty much an unhealthy system 9 

         that it seems as our State of Michigan is both coming up 10 

         with the path and the goal.  We need to respect each other's 11 

         job descriptions.   12 

                      We need to insure parent and family 13 

         accountability, number four.  And finally, number five, we 14 

         need to stop systemic child neglect before it starts.  What 15 

         do I mean by that?  Well, recently the most puniceus and 16 

         long-term barrier to solving the state dropout crisis has 17 

         just been given birth.  It's called the new four-year cohort 18 

         graduation rate calculation model.  It's an AYP deal breaker 19 

         for regional dropout recapturing schools.  It is, no matter 20 

         what anybody says, a seat time mandate with a four-year 21 

         clock that starts the first time a student steps into a 22 

         freshman class.  Because of this, schools are and will get 23 

         out of the business of opening their doors to dropped out 24 

         youth.   25 
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                      Most of my kids are on the five- to six-year plan. 1 

         With a swipe of a pen, my graduation rate just went from 87 2 

         percent to 17 percent because of who I am; not because of my 3 

         scores, but because by definition I take kids off the 4 

         streets.  Margaret Spellings here is not 5 

         mandating this or asking that it be mandated nationwide 6 

         until 2009.  So why are we rushing headlong into this in 7 

         Michigan in 2008?  I ask humbly that this committee makes a 8 

         preliminary recommendation for either an MDE decision, a 9 

         legislative action or an executive order issuing a stay put 10 

         on that calculation.  Let's use last year's graduation rate 11 

         model and save kids.  I thank you very much for your help.  12 

         And if you have any questions, I will be happy to answer 13 

         them. 14 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Thank you.  As a legislator, I hear 15 

         a lot of talk about No Child Left Behind.  You didn't touch 16 

         on that much there.  The environment that we are driving our 17 

         calculations off on success of No Child Left Behind has not 18 

         changed much.  When we look at the national economic 19 

         environment today, those that were struggling often because 20 

         of economic concerns are worse off now when No Child Left 21 

         Behind was implemented.  What is your sense on No Child Left 22 

         Behind?  Do you have any remedies or recommendations about 23 

         what should be done with that? 24 

                      MR. DONLAN:  Yes, sir.  As Andy Hargraves said, I 25 
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         think it's a wonderful moral and ethical initiative micro 1 

         managed to absurdity.  I believe that the skills involved in 2 

         No Child Left Behind and the bar is set appropriately.  But 3 

         I believe these newfound time constraints in how long it 4 

         takes a local or public school academy to do it with a 5 

         dropped out kid, they are illogical at best bordering on 6 

         lunacy.   7 

                      MR. GLEASON:  With your at risk population, is it 8 

         even doable with what you're trying to accomplish with the 9 

         students you have today?  Can you do that? 10 

                      MR. DONLAN:  We can get them to succeed at the 11 

         high bars, but we -- to do it after they've been on the 12 

         streets for two years before a four-year time clock expires, 13 

         it just does not make sense.  We can do it, but we need the 14 

         time to do it.  We can educate them until age 20 under the 15 

         Pupil Accounting Act.  But they drop out, they're able to 16 

         drop out at age 16.  And if they spend two years on the 17 

         streets, then those of us who recapture them, we're dinged 18 

         on our graduation rate at the end of their fourth year when 19 

         the clock started the first time they were in a freshman 20 

         class.  It doesn't make sense and it's unfair.  That is what 21 

         I call systemic child neglect, because we do have local 22 

         buildings now making the decisions.  Hmmm.  Do I want to 23 

         actually still serve as the fiscal agent for, let's say, an 24 

         ISD's graduation completion program?  People are starting to 25 
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         wonder whether it's even worth it.  It's almost like before 1 

         your time clock has turned our dropped out youth into 2 

         educational lepers, and it's very sad. 3 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  If there was a change, I 4 

         understand the four-year rule, the argument on the other 5 

         side obviously is that some of us would keep students in 6 

         school forever, if we could.  How would you resolve that?  7 

         Would you say there's a cap or when the student stops making 8 

         progress or, you know, what's your solution to the issue? 9 

                      MR. DONLAN:  Thank you, sir.  First of all, I 10 

         believe that every high school program should get like we do 11 

         now, either to age 20 or actually to age 26 in some cases 12 

         for our special needs kids.  And I do believe that we should 13 

         be -- we should be responsible for taking full and complete 14 

         responsibility for every single kid in an ISD.  Somebody 15 

         should be responsible for never letting that kid go until 16 

         that student either gets a high school education or goes 17 

         into a viable adult completion program, GED, with every 18 

         single one of those students in every single one of those 19 

         pathways then definitely going to college, because every kid 20 

         needs at least grade 13 and 14.  We just need an opportunity 21 

         to do it.  And, sir, under -- as you know, under the 22 

         graduation cohort model, even if we successful transition 23 

         students into adult education programs or GED completions, 24 

         even if they go to college, the school still gets hit on the 25 



 27

         graduation rate.  Dropout prevention schools and those who 1 

         recapture kids will never make AYP again, and they'll be 2 

         pummeled out of existence.  Thank you. 3 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have two representatives here 4 

         from Baker College of Flint, Julianne Princinsky -- wow, I 5 

         got my first one of the night, there we go -- and Ronnie 6 

         Bordine. 7 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  Good afternoon.  We're a tag team 8 

         for ten minutes.  We're just doing it together.  First of 9 

         all, I've already been introduced, so we just appreciate 10 

         this opportunity to address the MEA forum.  Our full-time 11 

         faculty members are in fact members of the MEA.   12 

                      And whether you are an educational administrator 13 

         or faculty, regardless of whether you're at the high school 14 

         level or the college, the issue of a dropout is something 15 

         that should be of great importance.  I read a quote from 16 

         AT&T's to address high school dropout crises.  It was in May 17 

         and June of this year; said that every 26 seconds another 18 

         American high school student drops out, 1.2 million U.S. 19 

         wide.  In fact -- and this is even worse -- nearly one-third 20 

         of all U.S. public high school students fail to graduate, 21 

         and the rate jumps to nearly one-half for African-American, 22 

         Hispanic and American Indian students.  So we have an issue 23 

         here that we do need to address together.   24 

                      From Baker College's perspective, we are a 25 
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         501(c)(3) not for profit right to try post-secondary 1 

         institution.  And while we go as high as doctoral degrees, 2 

         the great bulk of our students are in associate's degrees.  3 

         And they come from a public setting often needing up to 70, 4 

         75 percent of them developmental education.   5 

                      In that respect, we see three primary reasons for 6 

         students dropping out.  One is the lack of academic success 7 

         that they have resulting from a host of circumstances, 8 

         social and economic and otherwise.  The second is the 9 

         increasingly nonproductive lost senior year, and then the 10 

         third is the overall increasing perception of many high 11 

         school students, even talented high school students, that 12 

         high school in general is not relevant. 13 

                      To that end, Ronnie and I are going to share with 14 

         you some of the things that we are doing here in Genesee 15 

         County with public partners, I might add.  Ronnie? 16 

                      MS. BORDINE:  Hello.  Baker College's efforts to 17 

         address the previously lack of academic success in high 18 

         school include the creation of an entire developmental 19 

         education division that focuses on providing a comprehensive 20 

         preparatory program enabling entering freshmen, including 21 

         recent high school graduates, dislocated workers or 22 

         nontraditional adult learners to acquire academic skills 23 

         necessary to complete a college level course of study; the 24 

         implementation of competency based curricula and course exit 25 
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         requirements designed to maintain high academic standards 1 

         while insuring proper student placement and success in 2 

         subsequent English and mathematics courses; the 3 

         implementation of continuous quality improvement through the 4 

         use of benchmarking successful course completion rates; 5 

         quarterly assessment of student learning and the realignment 6 

         of student learning outcomes; the investment in new and 7 

         increased technology support for curricula and student 8 

         learning supported by researched best practices in adult 9 

         learning theory; and the provision of self-funded grants 10 

         enabling faculty to pilot strategies and/or programs that 11 

         successfully meet and mitigate the academic challenges that 12 

         our students present. 13 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  This gives you just a brief 14 

         snapshot of one area that we are addressing.  We all believe 15 

         that it is really cumbersome to have to do some of those 16 

         developmental educational efforts at the collegiate level.  17 

         We need to find ways to correct that earlier on.  But in the 18 

         meantime, we have to see people from where they are to where 19 

         they need to be.  We are also addressing the issue of the 20 

         lost senior year in a number of ways.  And Ronnie will share 21 

         those. 22 

                      MS. BORDINE:  We have the GFEC, GENET partnership 23 

         delivering collegiate level classes to students at their own 24 

         high schools via long distance delivery.  The GFEC supported 25 
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         effort to bring high school teachers together with college 1 

         professors to draft targeted initiatives to reclaim and 2 

         restructure the senior year to include an emphasis on 3 

         mathematics and writing.   4 

                      Baker College of Flint has actively supported the 5 

         following initiatives:  The creation of a county-wide 6 

         mathematics placement test designed to alert students to 7 

         deficiencies in math skill sets in their junior year in time 8 

         for a senior year intervention to eliminate the need to take 9 

         developmental classes in college.  The second initiative is 10 

         the hosting of three conferences bringing high school 11 

         English instructors and college English professors together 12 

         to discuss common concerns and positive solutions to enhance 13 

         the high school writing experience and eliminate the need to 14 

         take developmental classes in college.   15 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  GFEC, standing for Greater Flint 16 

         Educational Consortium, K-16.  We've been involved in that 17 

         with all educators, and I think Bob Nichols is going to talk 18 

         more about that.  Lastly, this issue of addressing relevancy 19 

         of high school students, perhaps maybe of most interest and 20 

         most unique because it kind of aligns with the Mott Middle 21 

         College.  Our three ventures we have going right now, the 22 

         first is in partnership with Carman-Ainsworth School 23 

         District and many of their board members and superintendent, 24 

         Bill Haley, are here.  And another with the three district 25 
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         consortium, and Peggy Yates, superintendent and fiscal agent 1 

         for the three-district consortium is back there.  For more 2 

         than two years now, with the three-district consortium, we 3 

         have offered automotive technology classes.  The entire 4 

         program on our school students are bussed from those 5 

         districts to Baker, taken back to their school district.  6 

         Over a hundred students have gained from 12 to 36 credit 7 

         hours while in high school towards their collegiate 8 

         automotive technology degree.  This year we expanded to 9 

         health sciences in alignment with the kind of health early 10 

         college program going on at U of M.  13 students took, for 11 

         example, the competency evaluated nurse's aide program and 12 

         have already passed their state examination while in high 13 

         school and accumulating up to 16 hours apiece towards the 14 

         associate's degree in patient care technician. 15 

                      Our newest venture with Carman Park Baker Career 16 

         Academy is a leveraging of resources in the very best sense.  17 

         A school district that had an open building by 18 

         reconsolidating that happened to be adjacent to our property 19 

         became the host site for what we call The Career Academy, 20 

         The Baker Career Academy.  Students are gaining high school 21 

         education in an alternative education setting along with 22 

         college credit.  And we're doing it in a building that has a 23 

         mixture of high school and college students that has been 24 

         incorporated into the Baker College of Flint campus.  It is 25 



 32

         demonstrable proof that independent private colleges and 1 

         public institutions can work effectively together and 2 

         leverage limited resources to do a much better job of 3 

         educating our student population.   4 

                      Lastly, just most recently the college has in one 5 

         of our Thumb counties partnered with the Huron Area 6 

         Technology Center and the Huron Intermediate School 7 

         District.  And already we have 17 young people, 8 

         interestingly enough none of whom tested into developmental 9 

         education, who will be taking an associate's degree in 10 

         computer technology while they are going to high school and 11 

         getting college credit at the same time.  We think these 12 

         kinds of things working in conjunction with independent 13 

         colleges and universities, independent high schools and 14 

         public high schools and public universities have to be the 15 

         way of the future if we intend to collaboratively address 16 

         the issue of dropouts. 17 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I hear a lot about this 18 

         stuff.  Developmental education, is that the terminology 19 

         we'd use for remedial? 20 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  Yes. 21 

                      MR. GLEASON:  With the tougher curriculum 22 

         that we're going to be enacting shortly, will this alleviate 23 

         some of the concern for the remedial work that we'll be 24 

         offering our students?  It seemed like there's a typical 25 
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         percentage.  Regardless of the university it's, like, 30 1 

         percent of the students across the State of Michigan need 2 

         remedial education at the college university level.  Will 3 

         this curriculum enhancement now, will that alleviate some of 4 

         that? 5 

                      MS. BORDINE:  We're certainly hoping so.  We do 6 

         know that -- and this is not just in our state, but 7 

         nationwide the first math class that a student takes in 8 

         college is the single greatest barrier to successful 9 

         completion of a degree.  And that's certainly probably true 10 

         at the high school level as well.  That seems to be the 11 

         area, the subject, that gives students the most difficulty.  12 

         And if at the -- we know, for example, if a student takes 13 

         and successfully passes intermediate algebra at the high 14 

         school level, their chance of success in college skyrockets, 15 

         that one fact alone.  So anything that can be done at the 16 

         high school level to increase students' success in 17 

         mathematics absolutely will impact all of us. 18 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  If I might add, in the Baker 19 

         Career Academy we have addressed that issue by opening up 20 

         those developmental labs that we have, and many of them are 21 

         technology-based in modular format, allowing the students 22 

         who are in the career academy that are high school students 23 

         to participate in those labs and go to them for extra 24 

         effort.  We definitely -- that's an aim of Baker Career 25 
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         Academy is to not only meet the Michigan Merit Curriculum 1 

         higher standards of rigor, relevance and relationships, but 2 

         it is also to reduce the number who go to college needing to 3 

         take developmental education. 4 

                      MR. GLEASON:  That's good.  Thank you. 5 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Julianne, just a bit of a 6 

         rhetorical question.  You and I have worked on many issues. 7 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  Yes, we have, Tom. 8 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  And we know where the barriers 9 

         are.  What would be your solution to resolve some of those 10 

         barriers, you know?  Sometimes we're hampered in our 11 

         relationship because of rules, regulations, whatever, and 12 

         we're pushed in another direction.  Does there need to be 13 

         some overriding solution?  And I've never really asked you 14 

         this question, because normally we're working on -- we're 15 

         working on trying to find here and now how can we get this 16 

         done.  Is there some global solution that we might be able 17 

         to implement to open the doors for us? 18 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  I think one would be one of 19 

         attitude; that at the state level we have to understand that 20 

         whether we like it or not we have a pluralistic educational 21 

         system in place, and we're going to have it.  People want at 22 

         times to make choices whether they're going to college or 23 

         whether they're going to high school.  And rather than spend 24 

         time in abrasive friction over that, we should at least, I 25 
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         believe, try to work with the resources we have.   1 

                      I also think we have to hold people to 2 

         accountability, whether we're public or private.  We ought 3 

         to have to measure to standards.  I couldn't help but -- I 4 

         don't know where the gentleman went who was talking about 5 

         the high school graduation rate.  Let me just suggest you 6 

         read the testimony from Juan Mestas, former chancellor for 7 

         the University of Michigan Flint, or from Dick Shank, 8 

         president of Mott, or testimony that we gave from Baker, 9 

         because the exact same problem is at the college rate when 10 

         you measure college graduation rates.  And part of it is, 11 

         like we are, a right to try institution, when you take 12 

         students who start at a lower level, not that they can't 13 

         finish at a very high level -- I'll match our grads against 14 

         anybody's -- but when you take them from where they start 15 

         and you have a much farther distance to move them, throw 16 

         into the mix that many of the dropouts of today are going to 17 

         be adult learners of tomorrow who are working full-time jobs 18 

         supporting families, sometimes two jobs or three jobs, 19 

         lacking healthcare benefits, you aren't going to get it done 20 

         in two years, a typical performance.   21 

                      So looking at those rates is another one, and then 22 

         just having and conveying things like this where we can 23 

         share really best practice ideas.  Genesee County is full of 24 

         forward thinking superintendents.  And they're sitting here; 25 
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         Peggy Yates and Bill Haley and Tom Svitkovich and John 1 

         Engle.  And I could list -- the list could go on and on of 2 

         people who understand that it is, yes, indeed going to take 3 

         a village.  It's going to take more than a village.  It's 4 

         going to take every educator, public or private, every 5 

         school board member, state legislators, everybody agreeing 6 

         to work together.  And we've got to quit trying to carve 7 

         pies just for certain populations.  And we have to say, 8 

         "Look, let's bring our strengths to the table and figure out 9 

         how to do it."   10 

                      Perhaps the most wonderful thing about the 11 

         Bendle-Carman-Baker partnership or about the three-district 12 

         partnership with Baker is that we didn't get anybody's 13 

         funding to do this.  They took resources they had for their 14 

         consortia, we took our resources and we said, "What can we 15 

         do to build a better solution?"  Well, you know me.  I could 16 

         go on.  Sorry.   17 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Good answer, though, Julianne. 18 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you both. 19 

                      MS. PRINCINSKY:  Thank you. 20 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up we have Bob Nichols of the 21 

         Greater Flint Educational Consortium.  Again, good segue.  22 

         Wow. 23 

                      MR. NICHOLS:  Good afternoon.  I represent 24 

         Kettering University as well as the Greater Flint Education 25 
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         Consortium.  I just want to read, since Julia stole some of 1 

         my thunder here, of course.  It's all right.   2 

                      But the Greater Flint Education Consortium is 3 

         composed of seven CEO's from Genesee County of K-12, 4 

         intermediate and higher education institutions.  This is 5 

         where we literally get together and discuss educational and 6 

         relationships in the schools, both at K-12 all the way 7 

         through K-16, the colleges.  So we have four universities in 8 

         this area, plus the 21 school districts that work together 9 

         trying to solve some problems.   10 

                      Now, some of the things that we're doing in the 11 

         GFEC, as we call it, is we do have an ITV classroom at 12 

         Kettering as well as the other three universities where 13 

         we're teaching dual enrollment classes now to the high 14 

         schools in their buildings as Julia has talked about.  And 15 

         there's a whole level of classes available.  Kettering's 16 

         offering higher level math and science courses, but there's 17 

         courses in language as well as psychology as well as lower 18 

         level classes available for students in the community 19 

         college as well.   20 

                      We also have a math and science -- math and 21 

         writing committee that is comprised of teachers and 22 

         professors from the K-12 system where they literally meet 23 

         quarterly getting together and understanding -- trying to 24 

         understand better what the curriculum could be for the high 25 
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         school students.   1 

                      I want to talk a little bit about a program that 2 

         we're working with at Kettering that -- I want to pick up on 3 

         Ronnie's comment about the fact that the first math course 4 

         can be a breaker for these students.  One of the things that 5 

         we're working on with Kettering is teacher training, trying 6 

         to teach teachers about the relevance of math and science 7 

         curriculum.  How many students when you were in school 8 

         asked, "Why do I have to take this algebra class?  Why do I 9 

         have to take" -- "when are we ever going to use this class?"  10 

         And what we're doing now in Kettering, we're inviting -- we 11 

         have 35 teachers come over to Kettering in May as a pilot.  12 

         And we took them down to our crash safety lab and taught 13 

         them the physics of the crash safety.  They literally could 14 

         see a crash in action, a simulation, and then the physics of 15 

         that program was taught to them.  So they're trying to tell 16 

         the teachers how the excitement of math and science.  And 17 

         I'm sorry.  I'm a little nervous here today for some reason.  18 

                      But what we're really trying to accomplish is get 19 

         teachers excited about what they're teaching in algebra and 20 

         geometry and those type of courses in high school so they 21 

         can convey that to their students.  Because right now many 22 

         teachers do not have any knowledge about the career 23 

         relevance of what they're teaching.  Thank you. 24 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Next up we have Gloria Bourdon, 25 
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         the Genesee ISD.  And while she's coming up here, I'm going 1 

         to get my colleague in the back a chance to change tapes by 2 

         just thanking those of you who got here a couple minutes 3 

         late.  Thank you all for coming tonight.  If you want to 4 

         testify this evening, just make sure you've filled out a 5 

         speaker card, and we have those outside.  If you can get 6 

         that to me, and we'll get you on the list and we'll keep 7 

         moving through the evening.  With that, Gloria, all yours. 8 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Thank you.  Oh, my.  It is a 9 

         pleasure to be here tonight, and I appreciate this 10 

         opportunity.  I direct health safety and nutrition services 11 

         at Genesee Intermediate.   12 

                      And one of the very important programs that we 13 

         feel is kind of a precursor to all of the things that have 14 

         been shared today is working with parents and preschool 15 

         children.  So our Project SK=IP has been in existence since 16 

         2000, but we worked with parents many years before that.  17 

         This happens to be a program that has been multi-funded over 18 

         the years, way over $18 million.  It takes about a million 19 

         two.  Over 8,000 parents have participated.  And each year 20 

         we have about 1,000 new parents who participate.  The sites 21 

         are locally operated, you might say, and we coordinate and 22 

         write grants to help fund that.  The whole emphasis is to 23 

         prepare children for school and to help parents do that.  So 24 

         through home visits and parent-child play groups, this is 25 
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         just a wonderful process that we watch parents go, 1 

         "Goodness, I didn't know that" or, "It's so nice to be able 2 

         to read a book to my child."   3 

                      So we hope that every child does participate in 4 

         some preschool program.  There are many others in the county 5 

         as well.  But we look at that as one of the dropout 6 

         prevention programs for parents.  We also have over 150 teen 7 

         parents in this program, any who are at the alternative 8 

         sites that you are hearing from tonight.  So that is another 9 

         population who really needs our help, our support and our 10 

         dollars.   11 

                      Through our department and many who are sitting in 12 

         the audience, we facilitate the attendance task force, so we 13 

         really look at dropout prevention from preschool all the way 14 

         through high school completion through parenting and beyond.  15 

         So with that, I will take any questions. 16 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I've got one. 17 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes? 18 

                      MR. GLEASON:  This is my greatest interest in 19 

         education, the young ones.   20 

                      MS. BOURDON:  We know you're a great supporter of 21 

         Project SK=IP. 22 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Absolutely.  I think that is an 23 

         answer to many ills.  We spend a lot of money on kids 17 and 24 

         over making sure that they do well in college. 25 
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                      MS. BOURDON:  Right. 1 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Tens of thousands of dollars in 2 

         tuition to get in a particular college and universities.  We 3 

         spend nothing on the small ones -- right? -- that are 4 

         building a foundation for life. 5 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Well, we do spend some dollars 6 

         certainly, but not the amount of dollars that we feel should 7 

         be. 8 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Irrelevant; irrelevant. 9 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Right. 10 

                      MR. GLEASON:  My concern is I see different 11 

         programs throughout the state and even in Genesee County who 12 

         have mentoring programs, and we have grandparents involved 13 

         with kids --  14 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes; yes. 15 

                      MR. GLEASON:  -- when they're in school. 16 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Right. 17 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Is there a way to make a connection 18 

         with the Department of Human Services and others that deal 19 

         with troubled families, broken families that have young 20 

         children where we can have a mentoring program even earlier 21 

         than the school setting where we can actually say, "We want 22 

         you to help guide this child and this family through the 23 

         educational process"? 24 

                      MS. BOURDON:  I think that's a very good idea.  25 
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         There are some community partners who work on that 1 

         particular topic.  We just don't have enough money to do as 2 

         much as we need to.  We have just recently received a 3 

         mentoring grant, so we will be working with Big Brothers/Big 4 

         Sisters.  But again, it's really a small amount of money for  5 

         what we need to have happen.  6 

                      MR. GLEASON:  And what would be the ages of that? 7 

                      MS. BOURDON:  That particular mentoring program is 8 

         grades four through eight. 9 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I mean, younger than the public 10 

         school setting, 2, 3 years old, something where we actually 11 

         have mentors that delve into that particular family 12 

         situation. 13 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes; yes.  Like a foster grandparent 14 

         program, similar to that? 15 

                      MR. GLEASON:  It'd be similar to that, but I'd 16 

         like to have it more directed towards education. 17 

                      MS. BOURDON:  I would have lots of ideas, and that 18 

         would be a great grant opportunity or a great focus that 19 

         maybe the legislature could address.  It's very important. 20 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I think we're spending money on the 21 

         wrong end of the problem myself.  I see we're spending a lot 22 

         of money after they get out of the K-12. 23 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes.  We would agree with you there. 24 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Okay.  Thank you. 25 
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                      MS. BOURDON:  Thanks. 1 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Gloria, --  2 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes, Tom? 3 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  -- I really want to respond a 4 

         little bit to the senator there in just ask him a question.  5 

         One of the things, Senator, that are very important in such 6 

         a program would be the development of an in-service staff 7 

         development training program for the mentors.  Oftentimes we 8 

         end up pulling people off the street who are good-hearted 9 

         individuals but their skill is not where it ought to be, and 10 

         as a result things don't happen the way they ought to.  And 11 

         sometimes we forget that.  And, Gloria, you might want to 12 

         respond to this.  But oftentimes these community based come 13 

         into school and read to my kid.  We're bringing people in 14 

         with good heart, but no skill.  And we really don't push the 15 

         ball forward, and so we've got to have adequate training 16 

         programs so that the folks come out and do what is kind of 17 

         research-based instruction or research-based mentoring so 18 

         that we can move the process forward.  And I think in a lot 19 

         of respects -- and this is more rhetorical, I guess, 20 

         Gloria -- but you know as well as I that there's an awful 21 

         lot of work that's going on in early childhood, --  22 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Right. 23 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  -- but not all of it is high 24 

         quality early childhood work.  And we need to be certain 25 
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         that that's happening. 1 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes.  And I might also mention too 2 

         they're to kind of address both questions, we are one of 23 3 

         counties who have the Great Start collaborative.  And that 4 

         is a statewide initiative really to look at all of these 5 

         foundation issues and how can we collaborate, how can we 6 

         utilize our dollars more effectively.  So we're very proud 7 

         of that initiative.  It just doesn't move fast enough to 8 

         kind of suit me or some of our administrators, too.  We know 9 

         there's so much that needs to be done.  The training piece 10 

         is essential in early childhood.  I think it does need to be 11 

         more coordinated, more focused.  And we are trying to weave 12 

         literacy and math in every activity.  So we've done a lot of 13 

         that training, but there's many, many early childhood 14 

         educators out there that we don't touch, and parents.  And 15 

         so we do -- everyone needs to help with this initiative. 16 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Gloria, SK=IP is an acronym.  Can 17 

         you please tell them what it means? 18 

                      MS. BOURDON:  I'm so sorry.  Successful Kids = 19 

         Involved Parents.  20 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  There's an equal sign in it? 21 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yeah, there is. 22 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  SK=IP? 23 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes.  Successful Kids with the 24 

         symbol = Involved Parents. 25 



 45

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Thank you. 1 

                      MR. COOK:  Gloria, Steve Cook with the MEA.  How 2 

         long has your program been in existence? 3 

                      MS. BOURDON:  It's been in existence since 2000.  4 

         And that began actually with a set pie monies from Michigan 5 

         Department of Education.  So we had a 13 and a half million 6 

         dollar grant with our 21 districts, which was reduced to 7 

         nine million, which is still an awful lot of money.  So we 8 

         had a very good start.  And then through other grants and 9 

         other community support from United Way and Ruth Mott and 10 

         community foundation and federal grants, we've been able to 11 

         maintain that program and grow it actually. 12 

                      MR. COOK:  It's probably early as these programs 13 

         go, but in the short amount of time that this has been in 14 

         existence, --  15 

                      MS. BOURDON:  Yes. 16 

                      MR. COOK:  -- do you have a sense yet of how 17 

         successful it has been? 18 

                      MS. BOURDON:  We do.  We have a longitudinal study 19 

         that's being done.  Really it started with day one.  20 

         Michigan State University Outreach Partnership, we have a 21 

         principle investigator, so we have I think a very rigid 22 

         evaluation.  And we're seeing, because some of those 23 

         children are now in fourth grade and fifth grade, so we are 24 

         seeing much more readiness reported by the kindergarten 25 
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         teachers of those children who were -- had experiences in 1 

         early childhood in those SK=IP.  And basically the real 2 

         trend that is starting to evolve in this evaluation is that 3 

         the parent home visits are the most effective.  And we are 4 

         using parents as teachers in love and logic and the 5 

         nurturing program.  Anything else?  Thank you. 6 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Gerald Kennedy. 7 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  Good afternoon.  My name is Gerald 8 

         Kennedy, and I'm a first grade teacher at Potter Elementary 9 

         School in Flint.  And I'm here to let you know that the 10 

         dropout issue is not just at the high school level.  It 11 

         starts in the elementary schools.   12 

               We can sometimes recognize a future dropout if 13 

         something radical doesn't change for them.  We see the 14 

         frustrated or the unmotivated student without parental 15 

         support falling farther and farther behind and become more 16 

         frustrated and alienated from school and learning.   17 

                      To stem the tide of dropouts, one of the things 18 

         that we need is to have strong elementary schools and have 19 

         adequate textbooks, supplies, smaller classes and concerned, 20 

         caring school personnel to meet the growing needs of the 21 

         children.   22 

                      Yesterday I gave out awards to my children; 23 

         attendance, academics and citizenship.  But today I called a 24 

         parent and I wanted to give her an award, even though it was 25 
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         just verbally, but to give her a Parent of the Year Award.  1 

         Because when her child walked into my class, she was 2 

         withdrawn, she was failing math, she was failing reading, 3 

         she was failing everything.  And she made a turnaround, and 4 

         it had nothing to do with me as such.  It had to do with the 5 

         parent getting involved.  And I believe one of the things 6 

         that we need tremendously is the parent involvement and the 7 

         community involvement, and not just words, but more 8 

         importantly the actions of getting people in the community 9 

         involved.   10 

                      One concern I have about the new curriculum is I'm 11 

         afraid that the increased requirements will add to the 12 

         dropouts.  Making the curriculum harder and one size fits 13 

         all isn't going to keep the children in school.  Making the 14 

         school relevant, valuable and seen as a pathway to a good 15 

         life is what needs to happen.  We need to recognize that not 16 

         everyone will, can or even want to go to college.   17 

                      We need to recognize there are jobs and career 18 

         that require little or no college to provide a decent income 19 

         and a decent life.  We need to provide opportunities for 20 

         apprenticeships and on-the-job training.  We need to 21 

         coordinate the efforts.  We have so many efforts going on 22 

         and so many good efforts, but they're here, they're here and 23 

         they're not coordinated.  We need to provide the services 24 

         and the resources that are needed to produce productive 25 
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         adults.  And lastly, I believe we need to promote education 1 

         in the State of Michigan as much as we do tourism.  Thank 2 

         you. 3 

                      MR. GLEASON:  There are good teachers too, besides 4 

         good parents. 5 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  Oh, without a doubt. 6 

                      MR. GLEASON:  It seems like you are one of them.  7 

         Thank you for your efforts. 8 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  Well, thank you.  I try. 9 

                      MR. GLEASON:  Our children are in second and fifth 10 

         grade right now in the Flushing School System.  When we have 11 

         the parent-teacher meetings, I think there's a tool that 12 

         we're leaving out.  We have a lot of families that aren't 13 

         able to get to the meetings because of transportation 14 

         concerns.  And it seems like it's growing more and more.  15 

         Even in our town of Flushing it seems like there's some 16 

         concerns there, multiple children families.  We may be able 17 

         to implement some kind of collaboration with the MTA if we 18 

         give the families enough notice to say, "Look it, I know 19 

         things are getting a little more difficult over $4 a gallon 20 

         for gas, you have many concerns, more than a few children."  21 

         Maybe if we allowed more time and had their schedules of 22 

         parent-teacher meetings well in advance that we could 23 

         actually collaborate with the Mass Transit Authority to get 24 

         more teachers and parents together, I think we're going to 25 
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         see more and more troubles with transportation for families 1 

         in Genesee County because of the economy and the cost of 2 

         fuel, high cost of insurance.  So a lot of families that 3 

         would like to sit down with their teachers have economic 4 

         concerns and not be able to get them in that classroom to 5 

         talk.   6 

                      We know SK=IP is important, but maybe we are not 7 

         answering every need by not allowing them to have some kind 8 

         of transportation.  Do you think with Potter Elementary you 9 

         could increase parent involvement by providing some 10 

         transportation using mass transit? 11 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  I think the way our school is we 12 

         have children come from all over different parts of the 13 

         city, and I would certainly couldn't be used as an excuse if 14 

         you want to say that.  It gives them another opportunity to 15 

         make sure that they have that transportation.  I think we 16 

         also need more time.  We're given very little time to meet 17 

         with parents.  And without that time, I'm really just 18 

         scratching the surface. 19 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I would say as a parent I think 20 

         you're right.  Thank you. 21 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  Thank you. 22 

                      MR. COOK:  Gerald, you're the second 23 

         one to come up and talk about the importance of the parental 24 

         involvement.  And I think you just hit the nail on the head.  25 
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         You might also be right about the tourism comment, too.  I 1 

         don't know.  I'm going to leave that to somebody else.  But 2 

         it was my experience with the Lansing Public Schools, 3 

         because I spent about five years.  And what the 4 

         superintendent and I put together is an elementary 5 

         attendance project.   6 

                      It's been my experience in my 20-some years in 7 

         public education that parental involvement is absolutely 8 

         necessary, so I'm very pleased to see both yourself and 9 

         Gloria bring that up.  Because the parental involvement, 10 

         especially early on, makes a tremendous difference.  Because 11 

         my belief is that elementary teachers can right now today 12 

         with a high degree of accuracy tell you which students for 13 

         whatever reason, whether it's attendance, whether it's their 14 

         family situation or whatever, won't be around in twelfth 15 

         grade.  And they can do that.  So I think the sooner we get 16 

         to this, the sooner we involve the parents, the better off 17 

         we're going to be.  So I just want to thank you for making 18 

         that comment. 19 

                      MR. KENNEDY:  And I'd like to make one short 20 

         little thing.  In Flint Schools we have made an effort to do 21 

         that, and we have youth projects, we have with the court 22 

         system with attendance, we have tried to make a difference.  23 

         And it's going to take awhile, and we know that, but at 24 

         least we're trying.  Thank you. 25 
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                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Jim Sandy. 1 

                      MR. SANDY:  Thank you.  I wear several hats.  I'm 2 

         the director of a program called the Michigan Business 3 

         Leaders for Education Excellence.  I represent employers of 4 

         500,000 Michigan citizens directly and about another million 5 

         and a half to two million through first or second tier 6 

         suppliers.  I also wear the hat of the state director for 7 

         the Michigan Scholars and a program called the Just for the 8 

         Kids Best Practices Institute where we work with high 9 

         poverty schools that are also high performing schools to 10 

         learn how do they get to the results.  And a lot of the 11 

         things that I've heard here this evening are exactly the 12 

         kinds of activities that a number of our schools are engaged 13 

         in.  And in this next week we're going to be spending some 14 

         time with some high priority schools that aren't quite 15 

         making the mark and bringing those schools back together to 16 

         share that experience.  So I'm going to be sharing what we 17 

         find with the members of the legislature.   18 

                      It's great to be back in Flint.  I started my 19 

         career here.  My only regret is that I won't be able to make 20 

         it to Angelo's tonight before I leave.  I also have to warn 21 

         the senator I spent the weekend with some of my former 22 

         teaching friends here that I used to coach with at Flint 23 

         Central that were your teachers, so you've got to be careful 24 

         with the questions you might ask me, John, because I've got 25 
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         the scoop on you. 1 

                      You know, on this issue of dropout, first of all, 2 

         we're the end user.  We're the customer of the system.  3 

         We're the people that someday hope to employ the students 4 

         that are in today's schools.  Now, we in this economic time 5 

         in this global economy we can go anywhere in the world to 6 

         find the best talent.  We want to raise them here in 7 

         Michigan.  I mean, we're paying a lot of taxes here in 8 

         Michigan.  We want to raise our own right here, and that's 9 

         our goal.  Our issue right now for our organization, our 10 

         business organization, is the focus on relevance.  And I've 11 

         already heard that mentioned.  Because -- and I'm a former 12 

         teacher and counselor and coach, as I told you.  Kids would 13 

         always ask, "Where do I need this?  Why do I need to use 14 

         this?"  I taught accounting, so it was easy.  But algebra, 15 

         "Why do I need to, you know" -- "why do I need to know 16 

         algebra?"  And the answer is, very frankly, "You may never 17 

         use an Algebra II equation in the workplace.  But if you're 18 

         smart enough to do Algebra II, we are going to hire you."  19 

                      And the other point that Ronnie is talking about, 20 

         you talk about the soft bigotry of low expectations, we can 21 

         close that gap, because 85 percent of the kids that take the 22 

         higher math classes, be they black, Hispanic or white, will 23 

         graduate from college.  And that's a fact from the Adelman 24 

         study.  I've got a whole bunch of resources I want to share 25 
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         with you tonight that I brought, because one of our goals is 1 

         to get clarity and truth to this issue.  And I'm sure 2 

         Michele, if you press her, 'cause she got me on her 3 

         committee, will verify that that's what I'm always asking 4 

         for, "What's the truth here?"   5 

                      So I think there are three things that we need to 6 

         do around this issue, and that's, first of all, come up with 7 

         a common definition, 'cause one person's dropout is not 8 

         necessarily another person's dropout.  And we quibble all 9 

         the time about, "Is the dropout rate of Detroit 25 percent 10 

         or 38 percent?"  You know, I mean, we shouldn't be having 11 

         that fight.  We've got to get that number up higher.  We 12 

         have got to get better data so that we can all agree upon 13 

         that.  And we need to have reliable information.  So those 14 

         are three little platform items that you'll always hear me 15 

         talk about when Michele has one of her meetings.   16 

                      One of the things that I've enjoyed this evening, 17 

         and I've read the information from a couple of the previous 18 

         hearings, I've heard a lot of people say, "The bar is too 19 

         high.  Why even try?  Just, you know, we can't do it."  But 20 

         I've heard can do tonight.  I don't know if the panel 21 

         members have heard that, but we've seen a lot of programs 22 

         where they're saying, "That's it.  We're going to do 23 

         something about it."  And you're doing it.  And I think we 24 

         can do something about it.   25 
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                      You know, with every issue there's always that 1 

         effort to try to blame or find blame.  And we're blaming, 2 

         you know, there are people pointing fingers at bad parents, 3 

         bad teachers, bad system, bad graduation requirement law, 4 

         bored kids that can't read.  It's a combination of many of 5 

         those things.  One minute warning already?  Jeez.  The 6 

         speaker allow me time from the -- let me just put it this 7 

         way:  I've brought some information here that will tell you 8 

         about careers that require math and science skills, the 9 

         fastest growing careers.  There's a whole bunch of stuff 10 

         over there.   11 

                      There's also a lot of information fresh out of the 12 

         Department of Education within the last 24 hours helping to 13 

         clarify why kids who have disabilities or challenges 14 

         shouldn't be in Algebra I in their freshman year.  There's a 15 

         lot of mistakes about that, a lot of misinterpretation.  16 

         We've got to get to the truth.  We've got to get clarity on 17 

         that.  And there's more flexibility in that law that's 18 

         currently being talked about.  We strongly support the 19 

         graduation requirements, because Michigan is not at a 20 

         crossroads.   21 

                      We went by the crossroads in the world economy 22 

         about ten years ago.  We have got to play catch up.  We are 23 

         way behind.  We don't consider the graduation requirements  24 

         in the business community as college prep.  That's in most 25 
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         of the world that we have that we represent and we have 1 

         firms in, that's general education.  I was on Mackinac 2 

         Island last weekend -- okay -- let me finish this last 3 

         story -- Mackinac Island last weekend.  The superintendent 4 

         of public instruction was addressing the group and he said 5 

         he had a business person come to him and said, "I don't need 6 

         kids to have Algebra I to pour coffee.  I just need kids 7 

         that will show up for work."  Well, that may be true.  And 8 

         then I turned to the young lady who was serving coffee to me 9 

         on Mackinac Island.  Alana from the Ukraine.  I asked Alana, 10 

         "When did you do algebra?"  She laughed.  She said, "Oh, 11 

         that was sixth grade."  And all the kids around the room who 12 

         were from India that were doing the same thing were kind of 13 

         chuckling, too.   14 

                      So we debate about can our ninth and tenth graders 15 

         do algebra when this is in typically most places of the 16 

         world a sixth grade subject.  So we've got some challenges.  17 

         We've got to raise the bar.  And I've got a whole another 18 

         five minutes, but I'm here.  So there's information over 19 

         there that will help bring some clarity to this issue of 20 

         personal curriculum and applying it to the high school 21 

         graduation requirements and diplomas and that.  So I think 22 

         we've mis-communicated.  There's been a lot of 23 

         mis-communication and confusion.   24 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  The testing issue, you 25 
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         know, there are an awful lot of folks, both educators and 1 

         non-educators, that are saying that testing is way too much, 2 

         you know.  I agree with you in terms of the high standards 3 

         and a curriculum that's relevant.  And I agree with you in 4 

         terms of having relationships with the business community, 5 

         you know.  I'm right on.  But I'm wondering how you feel 6 

         about testing every grade level, every subject, that kind of 7 

         thing. 8 

                      MR. SANDY:  Well, when it comes to testing, one of 9 

         the first things we do with potential employees is test 10 

         them.  So when they show up at the workplace, they're going 11 

         to get tested.  I believe that the system that has come 12 

         about now where we test grades three through eight every 13 

         year is a positive one, because we've reduced the length of 14 

         the test.  And before we had expectations, not grade level 15 

         contact expectations, but broad expectations that basically 16 

         said somewhere between the third grade and the fifth grade 17 

         you've got to teach kids fractions.  So the kid shows up at 18 

         third grade and he's not ready to learn fractions.  So the 19 

         third grade teacher presses him on to the fourth grade; 20 

         shows up at fourth grade and the fourth grade teacher says, 21 

         "Should have learned that in the third grade."  So they 22 

         don't teach fractions.  They get to the fifth grade, they 23 

         finally take a test.  And they say, "Hey, you kids don't 24 

         know fractions."  Well, now we can do that every year.  So 25 
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         it's a smaller, much more compressed test, but they do it 1 

         every year so then you can show yearly progress.  So then 2 

         you have these three- or four-year gaps where you're testing 3 

         subject matter knowledge so that you can catch that.  I 4 

         think it's a positive step personally.  I would have loved 5 

         to have had it as a former educator. 6 

                      MR. GLEASON:  We talk about whether students can 7 

         do Algebra I or II.  It's not necessarily whether you can do 8 

         Algebra I or II.  When you're in the workforce you have to 9 

         analyze and decide --  10 

                      MR. SANDY:  Correct; correct. 11 

                      MR. GLEASON:  -- what is the best course of action 12 

         that you take.  A squared plus B squared equals C squared, 13 

         is not necessarily the question you're going to have in your 14 

         career.  But math I think is the great instrument to use to 15 

         analyze and find an answer to a life issue.  I think our 16 

         argument is so narrow saying whether we can do the math or 17 

         the algebra rather than can we do the analytical work that's 18 

         going to be required when the teacher or the parent is no 19 

         longer at our side.  I support the more stringent 20 

         curriculum.  I think we can do it.  But I think we're 21 

         misstating what Algebra I and II accomplish in the long-term 22 

         that we learn to analyze, that we use the formulas, not only 23 

         the math formula, but the issues that we're going to deal 24 

         with.  I'm a skilled tradesman.  Many issues that I deal 25 
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         with in my career are not necessarily whether it's A squared 1 

         equals B -- or A squared plus B squared equals C squared.  2 

         It's whether the radius and the tangent on the conveyor 3 

         system is aligned in the right place, whether we hang the 4 

         equipment in the right location.  I think we're narrowing 5 

         our conversation when we should say, "Are our kids ready to 6 

         analyze and pick a correct direction when they leave 7 

         education and go into the workforce?"  I think we're doing a 8 

         disservice, not using the correct terminology about the 9 

         curriculum. 10 

                      MR. SANDY:  And I agree with you.  I use the 11 

         analogy as a former football coach where we used to have our 12 

         kids doing weight training.  Well, why do you train with 13 

         weights?  To get stronger.  Why do you take algebra?  To get 14 

         that brain stronger.  You don't see kids running around a 15 

         football field with barbells, you know.  So they're not 16 

         using them on the field, but they're using them because 17 

         their muscles are stronger.  If we're doing math, we're 18 

         working the brain and making it smarter and stronger, it can 19 

         figure things out.  And that's what we're looking for in 20 

         business and industry, smart people where can figure things 21 

         out.  But we don't hire -- in business and industry, there 22 

         used to be a need for dropouts.  We don't hire dropouts 23 

         anymore in my companies.  And we don't even hire college 24 

         dropouts anymore.  So thank you. 25 



 59

                      MS. COREY:  Jim, I've just got one question for 1 

         you.  And I'm not sure it's even a question, but it's a 2 

         point about, you know, when we talk to young people and they 3 

         talk about relevancy and then some of them talk about these 4 

         amazing programs that have changed their life trajectory.  5 

         And many of them have to do with apprenticeship and real 6 

         life experience in a business setting or in a real world 7 

         setting.  And I guess I just wanted to ask you about either 8 

         from MBLE's standpoint or the chamber's standpoint about 9 

         sort of supporting apprenticeship and that kind of process 10 

         in high schools? 11 

                      MR. SANDY:  Absolutely; yeah.  Hands on, the 12 

         relevance we've got away from it.  A few years ago we used 13 

         to have a lot of apprenticeships and then we went through 14 

         kind of a litigation period and liability period where 15 

         having folks on the job site was a problem.  But there are 16 

         some spectacular programs.  There are programs here that are 17 

         good examples.  There are programs, one in Detroit I heard 18 

         last week a lady was talking about a Compuware where they 19 

         had a whole floor of the Compuware building where they had 20 

         taken kids off the street.  And Ron left; right?  But they 21 

         had dropouts that had given up, and they went out and 22 

         rounded them up and they were doing the hands-on learning 23 

         and distance learning, and they were -- they were doing 24 

         quite well.   25 
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                      And the thing about this whole issue is that we 1 

         can't fear failure.  If we're trying to structure something 2 

         where we're going to remove failure from the equation, 3 

         that's not real life.  I mean, if I would have -- and I was 4 

         in fear of failure coming here tonight, because I'm not 5 

         going to convince some people to agree with me.  So I failed 6 

         at convincing you.  But if I would have had lived in that 7 

         fear, I wouldn't have shown up.  But one of learning how to 8 

         deal with failure is one of life's keen lessons.  And I 9 

         think we need to be able to work with that, too.  So not 10 

         everything you do you're going to -- it's going to come up 11 

         aces.  So I'm getting on my soapbox.  Okay. 12 

                      MR. GLEASON:  I have to apologize to you.  I have 13 

         to get home.  I want to thank those that shared their 14 

         information and their concerns.  And I look forward to 15 

         seeing this tape actually.  I think there's some good stuff 16 

         being presented here this evening.  I think it's nice that 17 

         we share our concerns and get them to the policymakers in 18 

         Lansing.  So thank you for the opportunity to share this 19 

         time with you, and I look forward to receiving the 20 

         information.  Thanks.  I have a 9- and 11-year-old, and they 21 

         both have a ball game tonight.  So I have got -- and my 22 

         wife's out of town. 23 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Next up we have Joyce 24 

         Weathers. 25 
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                       MS. WEATHERS:  Hello.  I'm Joyce Weathers, and 1 

         part of the learning support staff.  Dropping out in school 2 

         is the quiet epidemic in the United States and, yes, in the 3 

         City of Flint.  Completing high school is important in our 4 

         ever-changing society.  In Flint, not graduating from high 5 

         school one could in the past make a decent living.  However, 6 

         these jobs that used to pay living wages are virtually 7 

         disappearing.  GM afforded many Flint residents to live in 8 

         neighborhoods made up of professional and nonprofessional 9 

         families.  In these neighborhoods were professionals serving 10 

         as mentors and role models.  Students and the 11 

         nonprofessional families could see the benefit of obtaining 12 

         an education as well as employment in GM. 13 

                      The decline of GM created an economic deficiency.  14 

         As a result, those families where education was the key to 15 

         success began moving to the suburbs, thus leaving behind 16 

         neighborhoods without mentors and role models that students 17 

         could observe and see the value of an education as a means 18 

         of success.   19 

                      Today our economy requires an increase in 20 

         literacy, more educational, technological skills and 21 

         individuals becoming lifelong learners along with analytical 22 

         thinkers.  As the dropout rate prevention increase, all 23 

         students regardless of who they are should be made aware of 24 

         the need for the success in education and the long-term 25 
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         benefits toward their personal well-being as members to not 1 

         only theirself but also to society.  They need to realize 2 

         and utilize education as a tool to have, the same economical 3 

         success of their parents when General Motors at one time 4 

         afforded them that luxury.   5 

                      Now, one of the first steps was changing our names 6 

         from special education to learning support.  Think about 7 

         that.  Learning support incorporates all students.  We're 8 

         not alienating any students.  In Flint with the new concept 9 

         of learning support we move from the totally self-contained 10 

         classroom and we began to what is called intervention.  11 

         Intervention which included a resource room and inclusive 12 

         education.  In these intervention rooms and resource rooms 13 

         and intervention education, the academic needs of the 14 

         students was met.  But first one of the things we had to 15 

         think about was that what was important to the students, 16 

         their socialization; no longer did those students with 17 

         learning support worry about not being a part of their 18 

         peers, but they wanted to be like their peers.   19 

                      Now, is this working?  In talking to many of the 20 

         special -- I'm still saying special education.  Nervousness.  21 

         I should be saying learning support staff, they begun to 22 

         realize that those students who needed their services did 23 

         not want to be identified as needing their services.  So 24 

         what happened?  We were there providing the service, but who 25 



 63

         really received the service?  Those students in general 1 

         education.  We must even with the No Child Left Behind 2 

         realize that we cannot just meet their academic needs, but 3 

         we must meet the emotional and social needs of individuals.  4 

                      In conclusion, in Flint we realize that families, 5 

         educators, counselors, and the community have a very 6 

         important role in the responsibility to promote all students 7 

         in our learning support again.  I'm going to emphasize that.  8 

         Learning support, inclusive, not exclusive, to prepare for 9 

         their future starting from early childhood to high school 10 

         completion.  And I'm going to borrow Obama, nothing 11 

         political, but we move -- we must move from a, "Yes, I can," 12 

         but with a together we can help all students to complete the 13 

         learning process.  Thank you.  Please don't ask me 14 

         questions.  Questions?  Thank you. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Sandra Morgan-Jones and 16 

         Amanda Jane Schade. 17 

                      MS. MORGAN-JONES:  Good evening.  Thank you for 18 

         this opportunity.  I appreciate it.  I want to start by 19 

         asking a couple of questions.  Of course, they'll be 20 

         rhetorical, because we don't have time for a 21 

         question-and-answer session.   22 

                      Did you know that if a student earns at least 24 23 

         college credits before they graduate high school they have 24 

         about an 85 percent more chance of completing a bachelor's 25 
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         degree?  And did you know that the second largest employer 1 

         in our county and the fastest employer is in the medical and 2 

         health professions?  Well, now you know.   3 

                      And I'd like to tell you a little bit about the 4 

         Genesee Early College.  Genesee Early College, as you've 5 

         already heard, is the sister school to Mott Middle College.  6 

         We opened our doors this year, this academic year, 2007.  7 

         And we are a high school located on the campus of the 8 

         University of Michigan Flint, and we service students in and 9 

         around Genesee County.  And we are a small school.  And one 10 

         of the things that we do is we provide students with, of 11 

         course, their high school education and we provide them with 12 

         up to 60 transferrable college credits.  So we are 13 

         increasing their opportunity of not only graduating high 14 

         school, but graduating college.  And why is that so 15 

         important?  Well, I'll get back to that or Amanda Jane who 16 

         is here with me will talk to you about that. 17 

                      We specialize, or one of the things that we look 18 

         at when we are accepting students, we look at whether or not 19 

         that student has a genuine interest in that area that has 20 

         the fast -- that is the fastest growing employer in our 21 

         county and in the State of Michigan, medical and health 22 

         professions.  Students need to see that there is some light 23 

         at the end of the tunnel, there is something that they can 24 

         look forward to.  Every day when I go to work I do it, first 25 
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         of all, because I love it, but love alone is not enough.  1 

         Every two weeks I get something and it goes into my bank 2 

         account.  Students need to know that when they graduate 3 

         there will be something there for them.  They need to know 4 

         that their education means something.  They need to see that 5 

         relevance.   6 

                      And I've heard people up here talking about rigor, 7 

         the Michigan Merit Curriculum, whether or not algebra is 8 

         good or whether or not they should -- I'm not going to get 9 

         into that debate.  But the rigor is there, whether we want 10 

         it or not.  It's there on Mott Community College's campus.  11 

         It's there on Kettering's campus.  It's there on U of M's 12 

         campus.  And so we have to make sure we provide them and 13 

         make sure that they are prepared for it if they are going to 14 

         graduate high school and go on to some kind of 15 

         post-secondary training and be successful so they can look 16 

         forward to -- what? -- that two-week something that comes in 17 

         the mail.  And if we get right down to it, if we want our 18 

         students to be individual, if we want our kids to be 19 

         individuals who give back, we have to give something, too.  20 

                      In Genesee Early College along with our sister 21 

         school in partnership with the University of Michigan Flint 22 

         and the Genesee Intermediate School District, we are giving 23 

         back.  We are trying to make sure that they graduate.  We 24 

         are trying to make sure that that relevancy is there.  We 25 
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         are making sure we provide that support to them while they 1 

         are in high school.  We want them to see themselves as 2 

         completers of college.  That's important.  It's important 3 

         for my son and it's important to my kids; my kids that I 4 

         didn't birth, but all the rest of them that are right there 5 

         on college campus with me every day.   6 

                      And let me tell you, my kids are happy most of the 7 

         time.  And they see that what we have at Genesee Early 8 

         College is worthwhile, and they see the light at the end of 9 

         the tunnel.  Thank you. 10 

                      MS. SCHADE:  Hello.  My name is Amanda Jane 11 

         Schade, and I'm the language arts teacher at Genesee Early 12 

         College.  There has already been a lot of discussion this 13 

         evening about motivation and about relevance.  According to 14 

         a 2006 study from the Gates Foundation, 88 percent of 15 

         students who dropped out that year had passing grades when 16 

         they chose to leave high school and 70 percent of those same 17 

         surveyed students reported that they believed that they 18 

         could have passed high school if they would have tried. 19 

                      It is a wonderful place to be where we see that we 20 

         can help students graduate from high school by immediately 21 

         enrolling them into college courses.  There's nothing much 22 

         more relevant than seeing yourself taking courses towards a 23 

         real meaningful career goal in a growth industry.   24 

                      The early and middle college program I think are 25 



 67

         an incredibly valuable resource towards dropout prevention.  1 

         There are many paths to success and there are many forms of 2 

         success.  And if we can continue to find so many ways to 3 

         make education relevant to our students again as we so 4 

         clearly understand it to be but often have difficulty 5 

         communicating that to our students, then we can really make 6 

         a positive change towards this problem.   7 

                      I began my teaching career at a dropout prevention 8 

         school in Florida.  And when I moved to a traditional high 9 

         school, I -- a little story here -- I had an opportunity to 10 

         teach theater.  And I had an opportunity to teach technical 11 

         theater, which was building sets and painting them and 12 

         things like that.  After this class opened up, I had some 13 

         students enrolled in it who were sent to me who were 14 

         academically challenged who had failed a number of classes 15 

         and were at risk for dropping out.  They were convinced to 16 

         take my class because they were told that they could use 17 

         power tools, which they could.  And while we were working on 18 

         these sets, they found that there was value within the 19 

         educational system for the skills that they had learned at 20 

         home from their parents who were predominantly undereducated 21 

         skilled crafts people.  And to bring up what seems to be a 22 

         running theme of the evening with algebra, there's nothing 23 

         greater than hearing three teenage boys yelling at each 24 

         other over the din of power tools, "No, man, it's A squared 25 
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         plus B square equals C squared.  You've got to get this 1 

         right or the set's going to fall down."  And A squared plus 2 

         B squared can equal building a set that doesn't fall down.  3 

         And that made it relevant to them.   4 

                      And with the city I was teaching in, Jacksonville, 5 

         Florida, being a very popular location for the movie 6 

         industry, I remember thinking there should be a program 7 

         where we can work with the stage craft program at Florida 8 

         Community College of Jacksonville and directly with these 9 

         movie studios to let these children be involved immediately 10 

         in working towards what would be a very -- what would be a 11 

         growth industry and a very successful career opportunity in 12 

         Jacksonville, Florida.   13 

                      That program didn't exist in Florida.  But with 14 

         the middle and early college programs available here in 15 

         Genesee County, we have that.  We're able to motivate our 16 

         students and make their educations extremely relevant to 17 

         them.  Thank you. 18 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  I have one quick one for 19 

         you.  I know that Mott has a 60-hour career intern program 20 

         that goes on, and I know that the early college is going to 21 

         do a lot of its work at the hospitals or wherever.  But is 22 

         there a formal program there?  And I really don't know that 23 

         answer.   24 

                      MS. SCHADE:  Yes, we have a formal internship 25 
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         program which our students will be a part of in their what 1 

         would be their fifth year of GEC, their 13th year.  And also 2 

         they are already taking courses at Genesys and learning on 3 

         their health career education courses there and have already 4 

         been able to have experiences touring with and seeing the 5 

         work of some of the professionals at the hospitals. 6 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Ladies, thank you very much 7 

         for coming.  Can you help me understand the difference 8 

         between your middle college and the Mott school?  I mean, 9 

         you said you were sister schools.  But is there a different 10 

         academic focus or how is it that you guys are related? 11 

                      MS. MORGAN-JONES:  Sure.  The design principles 12 

         are exactly the same, power of the site, of course, and 13 

         student governance.  But, of course, Mott Middle College is 14 

         on a community college's campus, and Genesee Early College 15 

         is on a four-year college campus.  So our students do not 16 

         gain an associate's degree.  They gain up to 60 17 

         transferrable credits towards a bachelor's degree.  Our 18 

         school also focuses on the health and medical professions.  19 

         And at Mott Middle College, those students, their credits 20 

         can go towards a number of associate's degrees.  So those 21 

         are just a couple of differences.   22 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Diane Vach.  Did I get 23 

         it?  And I even went over and asked her.  My gosh. 24 

                      MS. VACH:  It's Diane Vach.  I'm speaking today as 25 
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         a mother of a dropout high school student.  He's 25 today.  1 

         He was honors English -- or honors math, science and 2 

         English, still dropped out.  Why did he drop out?  Bullying.  3 

         Okay.  He stands today at 25 5'2".  He's been a very short 4 

         person and, as a result of that, he was bullied quite 5 

         frequently.  And I had real challenges in getting him help, 6 

         so he wanted out.  The safety was too much. 7 

                      We struggled and he -- due to an unfortunate 8 

         accident, he ended up being kicked out of the school.  And 9 

         the unfortunate accident was there was a new knife law that 10 

         occurred and my son had left his backpack on a bus.  A 11 

         friend from a church conference had given him a gift of a 12 

         pocket knife which happened to be just a little bit bigger 13 

         than the limits, so the school had to kick him out.  But the 14 

         school never gave him another chance.  Okay.  He was done.  15 

         He was gone.  He was out.   16 

                      And because of his safety issues, I believe that 17 

         we couldn't get him back in.  We couldn't get him to stay.  18 

         And by the time he was 16 years old, he knew by law he 19 

         didn't have to stay.  Remember, this is not an unintelligent 20 

         child.  He was very smart, so he learned really quickly what 21 

         the rules were.  So he was done.  He did not have faith in 22 

         our system any longer.  Luckily, at age 25 I was able to get 23 

         him into a GED program within the City of Flint.  There was 24 

         a special program.  But again, that program let him down.  25 
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         Now, he did get his GED, but the program was supposed to 1 

         take him into some job placement opportunities.  But because 2 

         of the group that was doing the program became under 3 

         investigation, and so because of that investigation of 4 

         possible misappropriation of funds, he found that he wasn't 5 

         getting the money they promised him and, again, started to 6 

         lose faith in that system.  And then after many 7 

         conversations with me, he terminated that system. 8 

                      So he did get his GED at age 25, however, he is 9 

         still jobless two years later.  And it's really a struggle 10 

         trying to get him into college.  Now, he took an SAT through 11 

         that program and topped it, got every question.  This is a 12 

         smart kid.  It's bullying, it's fear that he is trying to 13 

         deal with.   14 

                      So until we have a community that says no 15 

         tolerance for bullying behavior, we're not going to change.  16 

         I as a village work with a group called FACT, Flint Area 17 

         Churches Together, and as a community hoping to change the 18 

         bullying system in our schools so that we have safe place 19 

         for our kids to be.  Now, I know statistics say that schools 20 

         aren't unsafe.  But we are also seeing increases in bullying 21 

         problems, and it's really rampant all over the country.  So 22 

         we really need to address that particular issue. 23 

                      So I really hope that one of the things we're 24 

         going to work on is getting the legal dropout age or ability 25 
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         to drop out up to at least 18, because I remember calling 1 

         truancy officers to my door to get my children out of bed.  2 

         I had two boys.  One did graduate.  And once he became 16, I 3 

         couldn't access that any longer to get him to school.  So if 4 

         we could get some laws in place to get our kids into school 5 

         until 18 so they have the ability to think properly about 6 

         their future, I think that's one step of the game.   7 

                      The other step of the game is to enact some and 8 

         provide some funding for bullying behavior.  Let's get the 9 

         bullying out of the schools, people.  It just is a problem 10 

         that we have to address.  Thank you. 11 

                      MR SVITKOVICH:  Well, I think your issue is 12 

         extremely important.  The bullying piece of that -- Gloria 13 

         has left, but in terms of doing our before and after school 14 

         programming as well as our birth to 5 initiatives, there's a 15 

         huge amount of grant funding that we've been utilizing to 16 

         deal with anti-bullying issues throughout this county, 17 

         including the Flint schools.  So I believe there's some 18 

         progress that's occurring there.  And, you know, we do 19 

         understand that that is an issue.  I mean, there are more 20 

         issues out there than just failing or passing algebra, you 21 

         know.  Our focus -- and this is more of a rhetorical 22 

         issue -- but our focus is truly to be certain that schools 23 

         are, number one, physically safe, which we believe they are, 24 

         but also to be certain that our schools are emotionally safe 25 
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         for all students as well as staff, as well as parents.  So 1 

         we hear your issue.  We understand what it is.  And, you 2 

         know, that's an item for us. 3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Not really a question, more 4 

         of a comment.  I wanted to thank you for your testimony.  I 5 

         know it takes a lot -- it's a very personal issue -- to talk 6 

         about what's happening in your family.  And we appreciate 7 

         your willingness to share.  On the compulsory attendance 8 

         issue you raise it as a possible solution.  I just want to 9 

         make sure you're aware that there is a bill in the 10 

         legislature to raise the compulsory attendance.  The 11 

         governor is very supportive of it.  It hasn't made its way 12 

         very far through the legislative process, but it's one that 13 

         I think you should share your concerns with Senator Gleason 14 

         and your state representative to make sure they're aware if 15 

         you haven't -- if you haven't already.  And if people are 16 

         interested in that topic, they can contact their legislator 17 

         and try to move that one along.   18 

                      It certainly is, I think, a right message from the 19 

         state to tell students that you're expected to stay in 20 

         school until you're 18.  The deficiency would be if the 21 

         legislature were to pass that bill and feel that they have 22 

         then now solved the dropout crisis, because we're just 23 

         keeping them locked in the building 'til they're 18.  I 24 

         mean, more attention needs to be placed on what we're doing 25 
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         with those students when they're in the building to make 1 

         sure that they stay than just change that requirement.  But 2 

         it is the right message and it would help a great deal if 3 

         that were to occur.  But that in and of itself is not an 4 

         answer to the problem, but it's certainly one step.  And I 5 

         urge you to contact your elected officials to try to make 6 

         that happen. 7 

                      MR. COOK:  One more thing.  Thank you 8 

         for coming and sharing that with us.  Bullying has been 9 

         mentioned at other hearings.  You're not the first one to 10 

         bring that up.  But I have to ask, in hindsight, how did the 11 

         system fail your son and so many of the others that have 12 

         testified in other hearings?  And what in your view could 13 

         have been done that would have helped your son finish high 14 

         school? 15 

                      MS. VACH:  I think there's a series of things.  16 

         First (inaudible) --  17 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Could you talk into the -- 18 

         so we can get that into the record? 19 

                      MS. VACH:  First there was a series of events that 20 

         occurred.  And one of the things that I think would have 21 

         been helpful is if they had really listened to the story 22 

         about how come the knife ended up in the backpack, you know.  23 

         It was just he took it to school.  He never was a violent 24 

         child.  He didn't have any record of violence at all.  And 25 
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         to give him an opportunity to make some kind of restitution 1 

         so he could make his way back.  There was really no 2 

         opportunity for that.  He was just sort of tossed out and, 3 

         you know, "You're just not important" was the message that I 4 

         feel he got.  So he didn't get any opportunities to make 5 

         changes.   6 

                      The other -- some of the other issues, I think 7 

         personally that often in this community kids are let down.  8 

         I think that what makes kids successful is that they believe 9 

         there's hope, there's someplace to go, there is a job 10 

         waiting for them.  And I don't see that hope here in this 11 

         community anymore.  I was raised here.  There was hope when  12 

         I was raised.  There is not hope anymore.  And I even see it 13 

         in my adult sons.  One's left for Chicago because there was 14 

         no help here.  So part of it is why go to school if there's 15 

         nothing to go to school for?  And I hear this from the other 16 

         kids in the community that I work with today, "What hope is 17 

         there for us here?  To get an education does not get us 18 

         anywhere here."  So I think if we can do something as a 19 

         community, communities that wrap around their kids make 20 

         changes.  Communities that work with their children, 21 

         communities, a village, that really works with the kids 22 

         makes successful kids.  Thanks. 23 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Jim Ananich. 24 

                      MR. ANANICH:  Good evening.  My name is Jim 25 
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         Ananich.  I'm a Flint city councilman.  But I think more 1 

         importantly tonight I'm a ninth grade teacher at Flint 2 

         Northern.  I'd first like to thank you for allowing me to be 3 

         here tonight.  4 

                      And as I was sitting here tonight listening to the 5 

         comments, one, it's very encouraging because there are a lot 6 

         of success stories out there.  And one of the things I've 7 

         heard from almost every success story were three factors.  8 

         And almost all of them had either one or all of the aspects; 9 

         flexibility when it comes to the programs; collaboration 10 

         when it comes to Baker and Carman-Ainsworth, when it comes 11 

         to the program at U of M and Mott College; and relevancy.  12 

         And what I've seen in my years in government in the last ten 13 

         years in particular out of Lansing and out of Washington, 14 

         D.C., is a lack of flexibility, discouraging collaboration, 15 

         and irrelevancy.  And I think that's one of the things we 16 

         have to address very shortly is a policy -- an educational 17 

         policy that encourages those three things instead of 18 

         discourages them.   19 

                      Diane told a very personal story, and it kind of 20 

         made me think about a story that happened to me within this 21 

         last year.  Many of my colleagues from Northern may be aware 22 

         of it.  Within the last two months one of my students was 23 

         walking to the store to get some paper towel and a two-liter 24 

         for his mom.  A kid asked him if he had any drugs.  He said 25 
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         he didn't have any, went in the store, came out, and the kid 1 

         asked him and took his toilet paper and his two liter of 2 

         pop.   3 

                      Now, mind you, this is one of the most positive 4 

         kids I had; every day came in and said, "Hey, Mr. Ananich, 5 

         how you doing?"  He was learning support.  He had some 6 

         difficulties, but he tried harder than any kid I had.  And 7 

         I'm not just saying that now because of what I'm about to 8 

         tell you.  I would have said this before.  He gave the kid 9 

         what he asked for, and he turned around and got shot in the 10 

         back.   11 

                      He's sitting in Hurley.  He's been in Hurley for 12 

         over a month now, probably going to be paralyzed from the 13 

         chest down.  And one of the things he said to his mom -- and 14 

         this is the most important part -- is, "Mom, you raised me 15 

         to be a good kid, and that's why I got shot.  Because the 16 

         bad kids don't get messed with; the good kids are the ones 17 

         that get messed with."  Obviously he was discouraged, and he 18 

         just didn't understand why.   19 

                      And I'm not saying that I have the answer to this, 20 

         because I don't.  But I think we have to address issues like 21 

         bullying, but also violence in our community, because the 22 

         kids don't feel safe when they leave our schools.  And if 23 

         you're going home to an environment in your community that's 24 

         not safe, if you're going home to parents that may have been 25 
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         dropouts and don't have the parental skills to give you what 1 

         you need to start the day off and to give you the 2 

         environment this you can do your homework, these issues of 3 

         whether you take Algebra I or Algebra II in ninth grade mean 4 

         nothing to the kid.  And how could they?   5 

                      I don't think anybody in this room or anybody 6 

         around education, whether they're a teacher, an educator, a 7 

         board member, a superintendent, thinks that we should lower 8 

         standards.  I don't think anyone's calling for that.  But I 9 

         think we have to have standards that are relevant to the 10 

         students.  If you put all ninth graders in Algebra I, for 11 

         instance, and the other nine years in school they have not 12 

         been given the skills to know Algebra I, all they're going 13 

         to do is fail and encourage them to drop out.   14 

                      I think what we have to do as Mr. Gleason said and 15 

         other people have said, you can't start with all of a sudden 16 

         having high standards and say, "Okay.  Now the problem's 17 

         over with."  That's politically usually a good things, 18 

         because it's easy to put on a flyer, "I supported higher 19 

         standards."  But if you don't put in the measures in place 20 

         at the beginning to make sure that the standards are met, 21 

         all you're doing is setting kids up to fail.   22 

                      There's obviously a lot more things I could say, 23 

         but I graduated from the Flint schools and I can read 24 

         "Time's up."  So I'll answer any questions people may have, 25 
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         because I didn't get to talk too much about my experiences 1 

         as a ninth grade teacher where we do lose a lot of our kids 2 

         in the ninth grade.  But if you have any questions I'm --  3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Jim, I'll give you the 4 

         chance to extend your remarks --  5 

                      MR. ANANICH:  Okay.  Thanks. 6 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  -- by answering this 7 

         question:  If you could identify as a ninth grade teacher 8 

         some of the primary reasons that you've seen students leave, 9 

         what would you say they are? 10 

                      MR. ANANICH:  I think that's a very good point.  I 11 

         know on for quite a few of my students pregnancy.  I have a 12 

         student who came to me today and said, "I'm going to lose my 13 

         kid if I don't pass your class."  But she's not been able to 14 

         be in school, because she doesn't have the adequate daycare 15 

         as a ninth grader.  I think that's an issue.  That's a good 16 

         point -- good question, I mean.  I think part of the problem 17 

         is the alternative setting.  I don't think we have enough 18 

         alternative settings, because I have 17, 18 year olds, I 19 

         think, one, are embarrassed to be in ninth grade classes, 20 

         and, one, either act out or stop coming.  I think that's 21 

         another issue that's important.   22 

                      I think sometimes our system -- and I'm not 23 

         blaming anybody -- but I think our system encourages if you 24 

         make a mistake that you're sort of labeled and you're kind 25 
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         of pushed aside.  It's hard to come back once you've made a 1 

         mistake.  And, I mean, I think we -- once you get in the 2 

         real world you make mistakes and you fix the mistake and you 3 

         move on.  I think in the educational system I don't know -- 4 

         I'm not providing solutions.  I'm just telling you what the 5 

         problems are.  I don't think we give enough opportunities to 6 

         let kids say, "Okay.  I made a mistake," rectify the mistake 7 

         and come back.  I think those are some of the big things 8 

         that I see as being a problem.  9 

                      Ninth graders, whether you want them to be mature 10 

         leaders, a lot of times as 15-year-olds just aren't.  And 11 

         you have to train them how to be -- teach them how to be --  12 

         excuse me -- how to be the more mature adult, how to be a 13 

         high school student.  And I think sometimes we expect them 14 

         to come in ninth grade day one and do that.  And they're 15 

         just not there yet, many of them aren't.  I think those are 16 

         some of the things I think we need to work on.  Thanks. 17 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Before you get started, I've got 18 

         to go to my graduation.  I saw my principals leave, my staff 19 

         member leave.  And I'm speaking, so I can't be late.  So I 20 

         apologize, and the schedule just won't allow me to stay any 21 

         longer.  So thank you very much.  I've enjoyed being a part 22 

         of this.  I've learned quite a bit.  And it's been quite 23 

         interesting.  So I know we've got another hour to go on, so 24 

         I know there will be other things on the testimony list.  25 
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         I'll have access to a tape. 1 

                      MR. PRATT:  Yeah.  We'll get that to you. 2 

                      MR. SVITKOVICH:  Okay.  Very good.  Thank you. 3 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, Tom.  Next we have Richard 4 

         Laing. 5 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Let me just ask Doug if we 6 

         run out of panelists, though, before we run out of speakers?  7 

         Do you have a contingency plan?  Volunteers from the 8 

         audience? 9 

                      MR. PRATT:  Like as I said in the beginning, we 10 

         will stay and record testimony for the record as long as 11 

         there are people here who want to speak.   12 

                      MR. LAING:  Thank you.  How many people here are 13 

         familiar with the old Civilian Conservation Corps from the 14 

         1930's?  We've got -- right.  You're not old enough to have 15 

         been there.  When Roosevelt came to power 1933, he was 16 

         facing a 25 percent unemployment rate nationwide so he had 17 

         to do something quickly.  So Congress had already passed the 18 

         legislation and he signed it.  And he turned the ball over 19 

         to General MacArthur and they put 260,000 recruits in camp 20 

         in 60 days. 21 

                      So if the problem's critical enough, we can figure 22 

         out how to do this.  In the 1980's under Governor Blanchard 23 

         we reinstated a residential-type program in Michigan.  It 24 

         ran for awhile and it was discarded.  Under Governor Engler 25 
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         we reinstated that program again.  And it ran for awhile and 1 

         then it was discarded.  The last time because the DNR had 2 

         the program -- I'll call DEQ -- because they didn't really 3 

         like 17- and 18-year-olds 24/7.  That's a pretty good 4 

         challenge, and those people weren't quite prepared to do it. 5 

                      Michigan Tech way up there at Houghton on Lake 6 

         Superior has proposed a new program called Michigan 7 

         Conservation Corps, and it's a residential program.  And in 8 

         that residential program we can feed them, clothe them, 9 

         house them, medicate them, work them.  All of the above 10 

         equals education.  It's open to 17-, 18-, 19-year-olds.  And 11 

         it provides them with a clean, healthy, safe place to live.  12 

                      In addition to the things I just mentioned, they 13 

         will earn minimum wage and $4700 in education credits.  The 14 

         program runs for one year.  At the end of that time, they 15 

         can come back home -- hopefully that's what they will do -- 16 

         and spend those education credits at their local community 17 

         college.   18 

                      So the program will be administered by Michigan 19 

         Tech.  The cost is about $20,000 per head.  And if the MEA's 20 

         number here that a dropout costs us $127,000, so this 21 

         becomes one of the greatest bargains we could possibly do.  22 

         Because the people that have ever been a part of this 23 

         program will tell you that it's the greatest thing that 24 

         happened to them.   25 
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                      There's a book called Proud to Work, which is 1 

         available.  And if anyone would like a copy of this business 2 

         plan or a copy of the book, if you'll give me your business 3 

         card, I'll be more than happy to see that you get that.  4 

         Thank you. 5 

                      MR. COOK:  Mr. Laing, if you said it, 6 

         I missed it.  But how long would they spend in the program? 7 

                      MR. LAING:  One year. 8 

                      MR. COOK:  One year.   9 

                      MR. LAING:  Yes. 10 

                      MR. LAING:  Thank you.   11 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Dick, I just want to thank 12 

         you for your commitment to this issue.  Because all of us 13 

         here are from Flint.  Some of us have been traveling around.  14 

         I don't know that you've missed a hearing yet.   15 

                      MR. LAING:  I missed Detroit. 16 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  You missed Detroit.  Okay.  17 

         But you've made four of five then so far. 18 

                      MR. LAING:  Yes, four of five; yes. 19 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  But your commitment is to 20 

         be admired. 21 

                      MR. LAING:  I've been involved with the committee 22 

         that's promoting this program for about 15 years.  And when 23 

         it was cancelled in around 2000, we had no sponsors.  So we 24 

         went back to Michigan Tech and said -- because they had been 25 
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         involved with the program up at Camp Alberta where they have 1 

         the facility -- and said, you know, "We'd like you people to 2 

         become the sponsor."  And Dr. Glenn Mroz, who is now 3 

         president of the university and who was then head of 4 

         forestry said, "Well, you know, we'd like to do that, but we 5 

         have issues."  Well, the issues were who was going to run 6 

         the university.  That's what was going on.  And so as it 7 

         turned out, Dr. Mroz became president.  And Dr. Peg Gale 8 

         moved in at treasury -- or, I mean, at forestry.   9 

                      So when I called him after he became president, I 10 

         congratulated him and said, "Now what?"  And he said, "Well, 11 

         I'm not the person to talk to.  Talk to Peg Gale."  So I 12 

         went and talked to her.  And about five minutes into my 13 

         presentation she said, "Okay.  What do you want us to do?"  14 

         Threw me all of, because I was not prepared for that.  I had 15 

         to wing it after that.  Thank you. 16 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thank you. 17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Renetha Rumph. 18 

                      MS. RUMPH:  Good afternoon.  My name is Renetha 19 

         Rumph, and I'm a teacher for the Flint Community Schools.  20 

         And my interest is personal in that I've been teaching high 21 

         school for a very long time.  When I first started here, I 22 

         worked in the alternative high school, which is schools of 23 

         choice for Flint, one of them anyway.  And one of the things 24 

         that I liked about the school is it gave opportunity to 25 
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         those children who didn't normally have the support system.  1 

                      Every teacher at choice had a kid that they 2 

         nurtured.  And whether it was for shoes or for lunch or for 3 

         talking to them about the baby they had at home, because 4 

         there was, like, three programs in that building; one was 5 

         ninth grade, the others were ten through 12, and then there 6 

         was a continuation school for young ladies who were 7 

         pregnant.  And the biggest deal for me was that you knew 8 

         that when a kid graduated they had gone through a struggle 9 

         and yet still they came to school.   10 

                      The attendance policy was such that it did not 11 

         stop a kid from graduating.  That's not the case right now.  12 

         And depending on where you are, if you miss more than 20 13 

         days in a semester, you can be dropped and given an E.  And 14 

         it doesn't mean the kid didn't get the wherewithall of what 15 

         was going on in the class, they didn't understand the 16 

         curriculum or they did not pass.  They did not put in the 17 

         time in the classroom.   18 

                      Now, for a kid who goes home and goes to work and 19 

         pays for the cable bill or pays for the light bill on their 20 

         part-time job and sees about their brother and sister, then 21 

         they come back to school, if we had to go home to those 22 

         situations, most of us would not get back to work.  Some of 23 

         those children come to school no matter what.  School is the 24 

         safest place for them.  And unfortunately, we as teachers 25 
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         have been so maligned because it used to be you could take a 1 

         kid home, you could spend time with a child.  Well, because 2 

         of the way times are, you don't dare put a kid in your car 3 

         without a witness, a boy or a girl.   4 

                      When we start talking about a dropout rate, the 5 

         kids who went to choice, and some of them still do, were the 6 

         kids who thought they still had a chance and somebody cared.  7 

         Somebody pushed them.  Say, one of the counselors -- we have 8 

         a counselor here in the room that's from Northern -- one of 9 

         the social workers, one of the teachers who thought, "I see 10 

         something in this kid," and it used to be that that kid was 11 

         maybe not on grade level but capable.  But because so many 12 

         of them go undetected in terms of their learning 13 

         disabilities, people still worked with them.  Well, that 14 

         program has changed.   15 

                      When you start talking about kids who are falling 16 

         in the cracks, they're falling through the cracks with all 17 

         of these wonderful programs we heard about.  I'm just so 18 

         excited that's happen in that Genesee County.  The problem 19 

         is, we've got as many kids not making the grade as we do who 20 

         are making the grade.  It doesn't need to have -- does the 21 

         state need to say the standards should be rigorous?  Yes.  22 

         Should someone be checking on that and making sure by 23 

         testing?  Yes.  But should there also be something that 24 

         catches the kid when they don't quite fit into that mold, 25 
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         whether it's bullying, whether it's lack of skills, whether 1 

         it's ID from learning support services.  But something ought 2 

         to be in place to catch that kid, and it's funding.   3 

                      When you say No Child Left Behind and you give no 4 

         funding, you have no support, there are only a few that are 5 

         still in the building when the bell rings.  And those that 6 

         do, easily get burned out because somebody says, "What are 7 

         you doing in the building with those children?  School's 8 

         out."  And because you know there's no transportation for 9 

         them, you have to make arrangements to get them home.  So 10 

         you're either paying for it or you're carrying them.  You 11 

         get a witness to go with you, because you want to make sure 12 

         this kid gets home safe.   13 

                      I can't say enough about all of the dedicated 14 

         people who continue to do what they do without funding.  But 15 

         there's so much more need for funding.  When we talk about 16 

         dropouts, the attrition rate is astronomical.  For the 17 

         amount of kids that come into high school, ninth grade --  18 

         first of all, I think Mr. Ananich was talking about the kids 19 

         not being ready and mature enough.  When they put them in 20 

         the high school with other kids who are driving, other kids 21 

         who are doing lots of other mature things, they're gone.  If 22 

         a kid doesn't have the support, the push from home, we've 23 

         already talked about that.   24 

                      I understand my time is up, but I wanted you to at 25 
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         least be aware of the fact there are a lot of kids that are 1 

         falling through the cracks and we need help.  Rigor is just 2 

         not it. 3 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thanks.  Next we have Pamela Ill. 4 

                      MS. ILL:  Thank you for the opportunity.  I am 5 

         teacher, first and foremost.  I've been teaching for 29 6 

         years.  I'm also an educational consultant and a part-time 7 

         author.  I teach up in the Thumb in Tuscola County.  And 8 

         what I'm here to ask for is that we look back and make sure 9 

         that we re-hook the career pathway movement that started in 10 

         Michigan in 1999 and 2000 to the rigor and relevancy issues. 11 

                      My school district and my intermediate district, 12 

         the Tuscola District, were fortunate enough to receive 13 

         career pathway grants in the 2000-2002 time period.  And we 14 

         were able to develop not just a career pathway system on 15 

         paper, but something called collaborative career pathways.  16 

         And it kind of addresses all of the things that everybody's 17 

         talking about tonight.  It is for every single student in 18 

         the high school.  My school is a board certified career 19 

         pathway high school.  That means that when every child 20 

         becomes a freshman they take a curriculum in addition to 21 

         everything else, in addition to all of their regular, that 22 

         allows them to learn teaming, it allows them to identify 23 

         their own strengths and characteristics, it gives them study 24 

         skills, and we do two authentic learning units.  We might 25 
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         learn to become flight schools or we might learn to become 1 

         baseball parks, but in the process of that, we see how that 2 

         all of the core subjects integrate and no matter what job or 3 

         career we might be interested in, we're going to need all 4 

         four cores plus some electives.  And we learn to team and we 5 

         learn to brainstorm. 6 

                      Then every student in the tenth and eleventh grade 7 

         has opportunities to after they've selected their pathway to 8 

         figure out if the cluster is right for them, if they need to 9 

         go to technical center, if they need virtual high school. 10 

         And what makes this different than a lot of other things, 11 

         and one of the things we have to really work on if we're 12 

         going to avoid the dropout rate is to put the children in 13 

         charge of their own learning.  And we can do this very well 14 

         by allowing them to start making the decisions.  Students 15 

         are making decisions about all kinds of things that we don't 16 

         want them to, so why shouldn't we have them be making these 17 

         decisions?   18 

                      In the eleventh grade if they do not choose 19 

         technical school, our students have opportunities to do 20 

         internships.  And all of the students in a collaborative 21 

         career pathway high school get the opportunity to present a 22 

         senior project.  In fact, at my school it's mandated for 23 

         graduation that every student present a rigorous project.  I 24 

         believe in the rigor, but I believe that in order to make it 25 
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         work we have to have this kind of real world relevancy where 1 

         the students have the opportunity to know what they're 2 

         interested in and how it's going to be relevant to that so 3 

         that we just don't take Algebra II to take it, but we know 4 

         how it's used in the field that we're going to go into. 5 

                      We also need it to be systematic, so that every 6 

         single student gets the same thing.  They get the same 7 

         opportunities to do this, in addition to everything else so 8 

         that they have a plan.  If you come to my high school and 9 

         ask my students, they can tell you what their post-secondary 10 

         plan is.  Collaborative pathways when it's used nationwide 11 

         has made less absenteeism, lower dropout rates.  It's based 12 

         on a lot of people's work, but the work of Kenneth Gray.  13 

         And I did bring my book, which is is a how to for career 14 

         pathways, that many schools in Michigan and also schools 15 

         nationwide are using.   16 

                      It is a system that can be used anywhere.  It's 17 

         not expensive.  It's about taking the village to raise the 18 

         child.  And what it is is putting everybody together on one 19 

         team.  The business people work with us, the parents work 20 

         with us, the school board works with us.  Every senior has 21 

         24 hours required in the community workplace.  They have to 22 

         have a technological component to their presentation.  They 23 

         have to have an academic component.  And they also have to 24 

         have a post-secondary plan that they formulate themself. 25 
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                      I want to just tell you about a couple of my 1 

         students.  I had seven students in a -- seniors who are in a 2 

         junior English class.  Five of those seven kids were taking 3 

         not only junior English but sophomore English.  And we 4 

         thought that all seven of them were at high risk of dropping 5 

         out and not receiving a diploma.  I'm here today to say that 6 

         with the help of their senior projects, all seven of them 7 

         stayed until graduation.  Five of them graduated.  And the 8 

         two who did not did not drop out.  They stayed and they got 9 

         their GED.  We took them out of their electives.  They got 10 

         to use the new credit recovery program.  We did virtual high 11 

         school with them.  We made sure that they are ready.   12 

                      Kara did not graduate.  She's a very bright girl.  13 

         She had a baby last year.  But what she did do was she 14 

         figured out that she wanted to -- she wanted to do piercings 15 

         and tattoos as a business.  And so she has gotten her GED 16 

         and came every day at the end and finished.   17 

                      Ben, who was very, very bright but didn't want to 18 

         do his work, suddenly realized about January of his senior 19 

         year that if he really started working on senior project and 20 

         he really started doing it, he could make a huge difference 21 

         in his own life.  He ended up going on five different 22 

         internships with computer repair people.  He has a job 23 

         working in a computer store right now at Staples.  And he 24 

         plans to go to college in two years when he get enough 25 
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         money. 1 

                      So part of the solution has to be tying rigor, 2 

         relevancy and relationships together and not just coining 3 

         the phrase.  It has to be a systematic approach.  We have to 4 

         have authentic engagement.  We have to have teachers and 5 

         curriculum that allow students not just to say, "Oh, this is 6 

         relevant," but to see how it's used in the real world.  7 

         Thank you. 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Next we have Judge Duncan 9 

         Beagle.  And then from there, just so we're all caught up, 10 

         because it is getting near the end of the evening, I have 11 

         five cards left after that.  If anybody I'm not going to 12 

         read off here still wants to speak, please get me a speaker 13 

         card and I'll get you in there.  I've got next Paul Jordan, 14 

         then Vivien Heidtman, Nayyirah Shariff, Judy Alexander, Pat 15 

         Frazier, and then anybody I get next.  16 

                      MR. BEAGLE:  Thank you.  Well, for those of you 17 

         that think a judge has a lot of influence, I can only tell 18 

         you that since I've been here about 5:30, two of the 19 

         panelists have already left.  And I told each of them I 20 

         wouldn't take it personally.  I did prepare some written 21 

         remarks, and so I'll try and abbreviate those so other 22 

         speakers can offer their comments. 23 

                      My name is Duncan Beagle, and I've been a Genesee 24 

         County circuit judge since 1991.  Presently I'm the 25 
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         presiding judge of our family division where I've served 1 

         since 1998 when the Michigan legislature by statute created 2 

         a family division in each county throughout our great state.  3 

                      I'm appearing before this distinguished group 4 

         today not only in my position as a family division judge, 5 

         but also as a member of the Genesee County attendance task 6 

         force.  Many of those members have been in and out of this 7 

         meeting today.  My actual interest in this issue began in 8 

         2000 when I worked with several athletic directors and 9 

         coaches from the Flint Community Schools on the 2.0 grade 10 

         point average for athletic eligibility.  The 2.0 requirement 11 

         was the highest in Genesee County, and there was no support 12 

         system in place.  This was when I learned that over a 13 

         ten-year period between 50 and 60 percent of the ninth 14 

         graders in the Flint schools were not graduating from high 15 

         school four years later.  I realized we had a serious 16 

         problem. 17 

                      I did some further research in an article from 18 

         1987 entitled "Reducing the Dropout Rate" by E. Gregory 19 

         Woods.  Again, this was 1987.  He began by saying, 20 

                       "Increasingly, it is being recognized the issue 21 

               of dropping out and dropout prevention cannot be 22 

               separate from issues affecting our total economic and 23 

               social structure.  These issues include poverty, 24 

               unemployment, discrimination, the role of the family, 25 
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               social values, the welfare cycle, child abuse and drug 1 

               abuse."   2 

         That was in 1987.  Here we are 21 years later and the State 3 

         of Michigan facing perhaps our toughest economic challenges 4 

         ever.   5 

                      Let me now offer some positive things that we're 6 

         doing here in Genesee County and perhaps some other ideas 7 

         for addressing this serious and complex issue.  I mentioned 8 

         the Genesee County attendance task force.  An attendance 9 

         summit was held in 2001 with representatives from school 10 

         districts, the family court, the prosecutor's office and the 11 

         Department of Human Services.  As a result of that summit, 12 

         the Genesee Intermediate District task force was formed.  It 13 

         was formed in January of 2002.  And its mission was to 14 

         create a standard process of enforcing the Michigan 15 

         compulsory attendance act in order to promote regular daily 16 

         attendance.   17 

                      The task force participants have been expanded, 18 

         and they now include Priority Children, Community Mental 19 

         Health, Youth Projects Diversion, and the Genesee County 20 

         Regional Chamber of Commerce.  What are we proud of?  Well, 21 

         attendance court was piloted with the Flint Schools and 22 

         later the Intermediate School District was added for the 23 

         out-county schools.  This particular program, which is 24 

         ongoing, allows preliminary or inquiry hearings to be held 25 
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         before the judge, not just a referee.  Referrals are then 1 

         made to the Youth Projects Division and/or the juvenile 2 

         probation department.  The active intervention by a judge at 3 

         the initial state of proceedings provides a more forceful 4 

         and successful program.  It's not because of my name Duncan 5 

         Beagle.  It's those five letters in front of my name that 6 

         spell J-u-d-g-e.  I do have some enforcement powers.   7 

                      And just as school districts need clear and 8 

         consistent attendance policies, guidelines for filing school 9 

         truancy and educational neglect petitions we found out must 10 

         be clear and consistent.  And this process was developed 11 

         with that thought in mind.  Our task force realized this 12 

         referral guideline is only the first step in addressing 13 

         school attendance problems.  A cooperative and coordinated 14 

         community-wide response that includes support services to 15 

         address the underlying causes of school nonattendance is 16 

         certainly needed to be successful.  And we'll continue to 17 

         develop recommendations and approaches for prevention and 18 

         early intervention. 19 

                      And I must say, I devote about an hour each week 20 

         to this.  It's challenging, it's rewarding, it's emotional.  21 

         And I think I take as much satisfaction in that one hour in 22 

         my job as anything I do.   23 

                      Attendance liaison officer, in 2006 the Genesee 24 

         Intermediate School District created a new position, 25 
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         attendance liaison officer.  Our present officer is in the 1 

         audience today, Laura Clark (phonetic), and she's involved 2 

         in a number of intervention activities.  I'll just mention a 3 

         few.  She meets with county school officials and charter 4 

         school officials to discuss their needs and process of 5 

         completing and filing the petitions.  She participates in 6 

         attendance court and other court hearings related to school 7 

         attendance and educational neglect.  She's participated in 8 

         school mediation in our various elementary and middle 9 

         schools throughout the county.  And she networks with other 10 

         support agencies throughout the county.   11 

                      This past year we tried something different.  And 12 

         I work primarily with Flint school officials, and we 13 

         scheduled a mediation at six elementary schools at 7:30 a.m.  14 

         This truancy process has helped parents, caregivers and 15 

         school officials find a fair and workable solution to the 16 

         children's problems.  And we'll continue that next year, and 17 

         we hope to expand it further. 18 

                      As many of you know -- and I'll just touch on a 19 

         few other quick points here -- the Mott Foundation has been 20 

         very active in an initiative that's taking place in four 21 

         Michigan communities to develop better information about how 22 

         many youth drop out and why and to use that intelligence to 23 

         change the outcomes for these young people.  We are very 24 

         thankful to the C.S. Mott Foundation.  I think a couple of 25 
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         their officials have been in the audience today, and we'll 1 

         certainly keep this committee further informed.   2 

                      A couple other quick thoughts so other speakers 3 

         can come forward, we've got to continue to think outside the 4 

         box and do business differently and more creatively.  I 5 

         think the educators need to understand that they need to 6 

         develop broad-based community partnerships aimed at serving 7 

         at risk youth who are potential dropouts.  I think we've got 8 

         to involve more people in our communities throughout the 9 

         State of Michigan, families, churches, local government, 10 

         business, block clubs and other community organizations.  11 

         And we've got to understand that this is not just an 12 

         educational problem.  It's a community, business, economic 13 

         and social problem.  And what I've learned in my short 14 

         involvement with this is that the intervention must begin at 15 

         the elementary level and we've got to quicky identify 16 

         students who have attendance issues and may likely drop out.  17 

         Continuity must be maintained.  We've got to select, train 18 

         and recognize teachers who are interested and have a passion 19 

         for working with at risk students.   20 

                      Possible programs, just a couple, I'd like to see 21 

         contracts for parents, students and school officials at the 22 

         beginning of the school year to identify those students with 23 

         a history of absenteeism.  At the beginning of each school 24 

         year we're going to strongly encourage parents, students and 25 
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         school officials to sign a contract.  Parents would attend 1 

         workshops on how to help their children and would visit the 2 

         school at designated times.  The teachers would be 3 

         encouraged to make daily calls to the homes of absentees.  4 

         Adopt a student program, we've got to get the business 5 

         community involved from the school, from the area, to act as 6 

         mentors with low achieving high school sophomores, juniors 7 

         and seniors in a career-oriented support system. 8 

                      I've kind of sensing I've got Big Brother looking 9 

         over my shoulder, so I'm going to wrap up my thoughts here.  10 

         There's a number of other concerns that I've put in writing 11 

         before the group.  I do think in closing that the Michigan 12 

         Merit Curriculum has got to be monitored very closely.  And 13 

         I'm not here to argue whether the curriculum is an 14 

         outstanding one or a poor one.  But there is some concern 15 

         that it may lead to increased dropouts.  And I think we all 16 

         have to keep an open mind.  We have to be aware of that, and 17 

         we've got to keep our eye on the ball.   18 

                      In summary, the good news to the dropout problem 19 

         is more public recognition and discussion as to the 20 

         seriousness of this complex issue.  The bad news is there 21 

         ain't no one magical quick fix solution to this issue.  22 

         Solutions cannot be achieved by the schools alone.  23 

         Solutions will need a team approach with the combined 24 

         efforts of community-based organizations and business as 25 
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         well as federal, state and local governments.  So I applaud 1 

         the Michigan Education Association and the other partner 2 

         organizations for scheduling these community forums 3 

         throughout the state.  And in closing, I simply say it's 4 

         time that we rolled up our sleeves and went to work.  Thank 5 

         you very much. 6 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Next we have 7 

         Paul Jordan. 8 

                      MR. JORDAN:  My name is Paul Jordan, and I do 9 

         several things.  One of -- I'm an instructor at Mott 10 

         Community College.  I am the secretary of the Flint Board of 11 

         Education, and I've been a member of the attendance task 12 

         force, oh, I don't know, four years maybe, since I retired 13 

         from my previous day job.   14 

                      And I think if you're looking for things that are 15 

         replicable and that are crucial that have a big potential 16 

         for synergy, you can look at the gentleman who was just 17 

         speaking, because the attendance task force in this county 18 

         has worked and successfully in an incremental fashion to 19 

         create a common culture in terms of attendance throughout 20 

         the county.  I'm not saying that all of the procedures are 21 

         necessarily implemented in every district or that the 22 

         manpower or womanpower exists in every district to implement 23 

         it totally, but what that task force has been able to 24 

         accomplish is to eliminate district border jumping as a 25 
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         means for escaping the obligation to attend school.  And 1 

         that is -- that's a fundamental change that I think is going 2 

         to pay big benefits over the years. 3 

                      The main thing that I wanted to talk about is that 4 

         in anticipation of this hearing I did some data crunching 5 

         with some attendance data that we were recently supplied 6 

         with through the attendance task force to see if I could 7 

         identify achievement -- middle school achievement and 8 

         attendance correlates of high school graduation.  I also 9 

         threw there into the mix the proportion of students who were 10 

         eligible for free and reduced lunch.  That means that their 11 

         families had incomes that was less than or equal to 200 12 

         times -- or twice the federal poverty rate.   13 

                      What I found is, of course, that the achievement 14 

         scores and the various attendance categories were all 15 

         correlated individually with graduation rates.  The higher 16 

         the achievement, the higher the graduation rates.  The 17 

         higher the attendance, the higher the graduation rates.  18 

         And, of course, the higher the poverty rate in the school 19 

         district, the lower the graduation rates.  An interesting 20 

         thing happened when I mathematically held constant poverty.  21 

         All the correlations disappeared.   22 

                      One of the things that suggested to me is that 23 

         poverty, of course, is a global state.  You are poor, your 24 

         family's poor, and there are a lot of implications from 25 
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         poverty.  And some of those implications impact school life.  1 

         That's really more fundamental than achievement.  You're not 2 

         going to do well on your middle school math MEAP if you've 3 

         missed a lot of school.  Okay.  You're not going to do well 4 

         in Algebra II if you've been missing a lot of school all the 5 

         way along.  You've missed fundamental math concepts, and 6 

         here you are in ninth grade and you still don't know basic 7 

         math concepts.  Okay. 8 

                      Many of the things that people are talking about 9 

         that are effective, including a lot of the stuff that Judge 10 

         Beagle does, because Judge Beagle may be a great judge, but 11 

         he's also a pretty good social worker, are to address those 12 

         artifacts of poverty that affect children's school life.  13 

         And I'm talking about addressing them not in ninth grade; 14 

         addressing them in first grade, kindergarten, second grade, 15 

         third grade, because those kids who are at risk for not 16 

         completing school are all identifiable years before they 17 

         drop out.  And yet there is no organized requirement or 18 

         funding from the state to address those critical needs of 19 

         poor kids not on the basis of a disability, but on the basis 20 

         of their social status as a poor child and whatever needs 21 

         they may have. 22 

                      The other point I'd like to make -- okay.  That's 23 

         it.  The other point is I think we've heard a lot about the 24 

         importance of having many different avenues for success.  25 
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         Alternative schools, schools for kids who've been expelled, 1 

         schools adult education, Mott Middle College, the U of M 2 

         Flint program, all of these things are important.  It's 3 

         important that people have many avenues, because you never 4 

         know when the lightbulb's going to go on.  For some kids 5 

         it's going to be 14, for other people it's going to be 34.  6 

         And there needs to be an avenue for them to move forward in 7 

         their lives and become educated whenever the light goes on.  8 

         Thank you. 9 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Vivian Heidtman, or we 10 

         don't have Vivian Heidtman.  I've got to go grab my other 11 

         card.  Nayyirah Shariff. 12 

                      MS. SHARIFF:  Hello.  I would like to preface all 13 

         of my comments by saying I am not an educator.  I am a 14 

         software engineer who kind of fell into community 15 

         organizing.  One of the things I like about software 16 

         engineering and community organizing is they're very 17 

         similar.  You both -- in both careers you have a chance to 18 

         solve problems, and there is not just one way to get there.  19 

         With this crisis is not going to be just one way to get 20 

         there.   21 

                      Now I work with seventh and eighth graders at 22 

         Northwestern High School.  And we do a lot of leadership 23 

         development and empowerment with the kids.  This for me 24 

         empowering our kids, you have a chance to listen, actually 25 
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         listen, to why.  You need to find out the why before you can 1 

         solve a problem.  No problem is ever solved if you don't 2 

         know why it exists.   3 

                      In my spare time I'm also a poet, and I'm pleased 4 

         that you've been down to Detroit already, so you probably 5 

         had someone from this Detroit Summer speak to you.  And 6 

         basically down in Detroit it was a group of students who 7 

         interviewed their peers in finding out why they're dropping 8 

         out of high school, and they created a musical CD talking 9 

         about it.  So it was rap, spoken word, talking about why the 10 

         kids are dropping out.   11 

                      I don't see any kids in this room, and I hope that 12 

         at one point there was a hearing in a school when school was 13 

         in session so you had a chance to speak to the stakeholders.  14 

         We as adults don't really know why the kids are dropping 15 

         out, and we don't know, like, if we just create solutions in 16 

         isolation, it's not going to be effective.  You have to ask 17 

         the kids, "Why you dropping out?  What do you need to 18 

         succeed?"  And then we as adults sit back and do it.  19 

                      Because our kids are a depressed class.  They 20 

         can't vote, they're not paying taxes, they're not 21 

         policymakers.  So it's up to us as adults to listen to what 22 

         our kids are actually saying, because dropping out may not 23 

         be because you're dumb.  It may be because you've been 24 

         bullied.  It may be because the teacher is treating you like 25 
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         trash.  I interviewed seventh and eighth graders, and they 1 

         said when they go into the school they feel like they're 2 

         trash.  Now, would you want to go into an environment as an 3 

         adult where you don't feel value?  No.  I will answer for 4 

         you "no."   5 

                      So hopefully at some point there is some mechanism 6 

         where you're going to be specifically speaking to the 7 

         students that are in the school system right now and see why 8 

         they're dropping out.  Speaking to our alternative, 9 

         whatever, speaking to students within that age bracket, 10 

         because we cannot solve this problem without them.  Thank 11 

         you. 12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up we have Judy Alexander.  And 13 

         while Judy is coming up, I will say, yes, we did hold a 14 

         hearing -- we have held hearings in school, gotten some 15 

         input from students, just so that you know.  But we're going 16 

         to do more. 17 

                      MS. ALEXANDER:  Good evening.  I'm also not an 18 

         educator.  I work with women who are pregnant or have 19 

         children under the age of 1 year, and so many of the moms 20 

         that I work with are school age.  And I wanted to express 21 

         concern on behalf of some of the young people who are 22 

         falling through the cracks.   23 

                      I work with a number of young women who have -- 24 

         are under the age of 16 and they've been put out of school.  25 
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         They've been told by the principal, "Don't come back."  And 1 

         the parent may not have the persistence, the confidence, 2 

         whatever to go fight the system and get the student enrolled 3 

         at another school and nobody is looking for this young 4 

         woman.  Okay.  The principal who put the child out is just 5 

         glad that she's not in my school anymore, and nobody's 6 

         looking for them.  And again, these are young people that 7 

         are under the age of 16. 8 

                      So when we talk about, you know, where's the 9 

         safety valve for these kids, once a child has been 10 

         labeled -- Mr. Ananich mentioned labeling -- Nayyirah said 11 

         it perfectly, they feel like trash.  They don't feel safe 12 

         with the school personnel and the administrators.  They 13 

         don't feel safe any longer because they've been labeled.  14 

         And there isn't an opportunity to turn that around.   15 

                      So whether it's alternative programming, wrapping 16 

         around young people and families that are struggling, at 17 

         least some continuity in follow-up when a student is under 18 

         the age of 16 and they're put out of one school, who's 19 

         following up to make sure they get enrolled someplace else?  20 

         In the Flint school system with the closing of Johnson AAA, 21 

         that was the school of last resort, so now what's available 22 

         for these young people that have no place else to go?  So we 23 

         need the alternatives, the various avenues to success.  I 24 

         don't know if they need, like, a grievance procedure or some 25 
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         kind of outlet if they feel harassed by school personnel.  I 1 

         think that's it. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Pat Frazier. 3 

                      MS. FRAZIER:  Good evening.  I'm Pat Gilchrist 4 

         Frazier, and I'm the director of special education learning 5 

         support services in Flint Community Schools.  You probably 6 

         noticed there's quite a few people from Flint Community 7 

         Schools speaking out tonight.  I didn't plan to.  And so I 8 

         thought if I said anything that I would just speak from my 9 

         heart. 10 

                      And so speaking from my heart, I have to say this: 11 

         If you have read any statistics, you know that, if you're an 12 

         African-American student, you're most likely, twice as 13 

         likely, to drop out of school.  To compound that, if you've 14 

         been identified as a student with disabilities, you are even 15 

         more likely to drop out of school.  And a lot of people have 16 

         addressed labels.  We've been trying to do something in 17 

         Flint about dispelling labels.  We've been including our 18 

         students in general education more.  But to do that, it 19 

         takes money.   20 

                      We want highly qualified teachers that are experts 21 

         in their craft and in their curriculum.  And in order to do 22 

         that, you have to have general ed and special education 23 

         teachers working together.  But it takes funding.  And 24 

         everyone has talked about funding, and I know when people 25 
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         get up and talk about funding, some folks say, "Well, that's 1 

         just throwing good money after bad.  What's giving more 2 

         money going to do?"  Well, if you have lots of money, you 3 

         don't know what it means to not have money.   4 

                      I think the reason a lot of folks in Flint have 5 

         spoken out tonight, because we are bleeding.  We need some 6 

         triage money.  We need some money to -- it's not that we 7 

         don't know what to do.  We know what to do.  We need the 8 

         people to do it with.  Because we know everything that we 9 

         need to do to educate these children.  But, you know, some 10 

         people say that, "To much is given much is owed."  Well, to 11 

         much that is not given much is owed.  There needs to be some 12 

         triage money given to Flint so that we can do what we know 13 

         to do.  It's not that we don't know what to do.  We don't 14 

         have the resources to do it.   15 

                      And I want to end by saying this:  I advocate for 16 

         all children, particularly if you have students with 17 

         disabilities being identified in your district at a rate of 18 

         11 percent, you're talking about all the children.  And if 19 

         you have a large percentage of students that are learning 20 

         disabilities in your districts, those are children that have 21 

         average intelligence that can pass algebra.  You just have 22 

         to expect it.  But expecting it is not enough if you don't 23 

         have the resources to do it with.   24 

                      And so I want to end by saying this:  When I sit 25 
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         down and I talk to parents of students with disabilities and 1 

         I ask them, "What do you want for your children," they want 2 

         the same thing that the children that are general ed want.  3 

         They all want their children to have a better quality of 4 

         life than they had.  They all want their children to be 5 

         productive.  They have the same goals.  These are the same 6 

         children.  We are all one community.  So send us that triage 7 

         money.  Thank you. 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  One last call for Vivian Heidtman.  9 

         All right.  Then we come to our last speaker of the evening, 10 

         Nancy Rozier. 11 

                      MS. ROZIER:  Greetings and salutations to each and 12 

         every one of you.  I am happy to stand before you this 13 

         afternoon.  I bring you greetings from the United Teachers 14 

         of Flint, the Michigan Education Association and NEA, also 15 

         Holmes Middle School.   16 

                      To the judge in his absence, I'd just like to take 17 

         this time to say I really like the idea of having a phone in 18 

         the room.  I don't mind calling parents.  I'm not going to 19 

         leave my students to go call a parent.  I can't afford to.  20 

         It's a safety issue, you understand.  So if you would be 21 

         compliant and give us a phone in each room and then provide 22 

         us with a mentor to mind the children while I'm making that 23 

         phone call, then that would be hunky-dory.  And I know 24 

         that's an old statement, but I'm saying that because I'm an 25 
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         older person. 1 

                      I want to talk about what the young lady alluded 2 

         to earlier.  And, no, I did not plan to speak, but I'm 3 

         speaking from my heart, too.  You know, when we're talking 4 

         about the war, I want to know about the war.  I'm not going 5 

         to ask the general.  I have to go and ask that foot soldier, 6 

         the one that's in the trenches, that's driving the tank.  7 

         Because he can tell me more about what's actually going on 8 

         rather than the general that's sitting up there with his 9 

         binoculars telling me what we should do down there.   10 

                      So I thank you for including students.  And, yes, 11 

         you need to get back with them and find out what's on their 12 

         minds and what they're thinking about and what they need, 13 

         because they're bleeding.  And when they bleed, we bleed.  14 

                      I'm a random, so I'm going to go here, there and a 15 

         little bit of everywhere.  When we talk about poverty, 16 

         poverty as the scripture said, the poor will always be with 17 

         you.  And when I think about poverty, I think about Ben 18 

         Carson, who's mother had a third grade education.  However, 19 

         that did not stop Dr. Carson from being a success.  If you 20 

         raise the bar, raise your expectations, it's all in the 21 

         state of your mind.  If you think you can, then you can.  22 

         someone has to articulate that to you.   23 

                      And just on yesterday, Dr. Carson's had another 24 

         successful operation.  Once again, a mother who did become 25 
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         single raised the two boys by herself, a third grade 1 

         education.  So when we talk about poverty, not that it's a 2 

         good thing, but it can be overcome.  We need to keep that in 3 

         mind.  Okay.   4 

                      When you talk about traditional schools, and 5 

         that's basically what we're talking about, now, let's face 6 

         it, when I go out to dine, I want a smorgasbord.  I want a 7 

         buffet.  So a traditional school in itself may not fit the 8 

         needs of all of the children that we've gathered under out 9 

         tutelage today.  In other words, the children that are 10 

         coming to us, some are coming from two-parent homes, some 11 

         are coming from single homes, some are coming from a parent 12 

         who might be just 12 or 13 years older than they are.   13 

                      So you need to offer some other solutions or 14 

         suggestions.  Someone once said, "If you do the same old 15 

         thing, you get the same old results."  And we're getting the 16 

         same old results.  So, yes, we're going to have to think out 17 

         of the box.  We're going to have to get out of the box.  18 

         What do we need?  We need -- yes, they need algebra, they 19 

         need Algebra II, but not on the same day and not in the same 20 

         way.  That's what the late Dr. Hansberry (phonetic) said.  21 

         All children can learn, but they might be Leo the late 22 

         bloomer.  So if Leo gets the problem in March and your child 23 

         got it in December, the outcome or the final result is they 24 

         both got the problem.  Isn't that what you want?  So they 25 
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         may need some extra time to get what they need.   1 

                      You guys keep talking about pacing charts and 2 

         things like that.  Every child that we service learns at a 3 

         different rate and a different speed depending on whether or 4 

         not they had nurturing parents, whether or not they went to 5 

         kindergarten, whether or not they went to Head Start, 6 

         whether or not they were tucked in each night and someone 7 

         read to them.  But they all have the ability to learn.  I 8 

         would like to say that we are dealing with a traditional 9 

         school which might be archaic, losing an agricultural 10 

         calendar.  Our young people come to school, they're sleepy 11 

         in the morning.  They stay up late.  They really don't 12 

         function, middle school and high schoolers until about the 13 

         second hour.  If you know that, then why don't you start 14 

         school at 7:12 or 7:15 or 7:18?  So that first hour is like, 15 

         you know -- and then you get them, they're alert, they don't 16 

         know what happened in the first hour.   17 

                      I don't agree with multiple testing.  You're 18 

         testing our babies to death.  One, two, three, four, 19 

         sometimes our children take five tests within a year.  You 20 

         get out one test, you finish, you package that up, you sent 21 

         it, and another test is already in the building.  Now, 22 

         remember these are our children.  We need to have time to 23 

         teach them.  You have to teach and then you test.  If you 24 

         haven't taught, then you cannot test them on what you 25 
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         haven't taught.   1 

                      Everybody wants a safe and orderly environment.  I 2 

         know I do.  I want to feel safe in my building.  Sometimes 3 

         there are people that make me feel unsafe.  And when that 4 

         happens, I don't want their learning to stop.  There should 5 

         be an intervention or an in-school suspension room or 6 

         perhaps a place or a structure where they can still go with 7 

         adequate supervision and get the learnings and the lessons 8 

         that they need.  They may not necessarily need to be in my 9 

         room the next day after they've called me a lot of unkind 10 

         names and acted out in my classroom.  I need to respect 11 

         them, they need to respect me.  And that's a two-way street.  12 

         They need to respect themselves and their peers. 13 

                      So I take issue with the state being concerned 14 

         about the number of suspensions when you slap us on the hand 15 

         because we have a lot of students suspended because perhaps 16 

         they didn't act in a traditional manner.  So if you don't 17 

         like that, send me some tools from your toolbox so we won't 18 

         have this happening in our school district.   19 

                      And I'd like to thank you for this opportunity to 20 

         stand before you.  I am an avid reader and I can read that 21 

         sign.  And I believe she says my time is up.  But thank you 22 

         for allowing me to share. 23 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  That brings me to the end 24 

         of my pile of speaker cards.  Thank you everybody for 25 
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         staying with us this evening.  This was a very good 1 

         conversation.  I want to give our three remaining panelists 2 

         a couple seconds to just talk about the themes you heard and 3 

         the things that you're going to take away from this, things 4 

         that you want to make sure that the legislators who hear 5 

         this in the fall take away from this hearing.  And we'll 6 

         start with here with Gary. 7 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thanks, Doug.  I would offer my 8 

         congratulations too and appreciation for all of you who are 9 

         here in the audience, even those who didn't come to speak.  10 

         This is the fifth of the ten hearings.  And I've attended 11 

         all five, but only been a panelist in one.  And it has been 12 

         a very enlightening and educational experience.  There are 13 

         some unique stories at every hearing, and there are some 14 

         commonalities in every hearing.   15 

                      And I think it was helpful for Jim Sandy to 16 

         mention something that I just saw the other day, and I hope 17 

         you do pick it up on the table, the Department of Education 18 

         has put out some information that I think clarifies the 19 

         curriculum requirements to kind of get at this notion that 20 

         the setup today is setup as a one size fits all, every 21 

         student must take the exact same courses and exact same 22 

         order.  It's not -- I mean, that's commonly referred to in 23 

         talking, but it's not really the reality of the situation. 24 

         So I hope you do read -- get those information and we get 25 
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         that out to people.  I mean, I think the challenge that we 1 

         have is in this regard is how to both maintain high 2 

         expectations and high standards, but allow the kind of 3 

         flexibility necessary for little Johnny and little Susie to 4 

         get the concepts that we want them to get in the time frame 5 

         that they need to get those.  And I'm not an educator by 6 

         trade, and so it's fascinating for me to listen to a lot of 7 

         this testimony.   8 

                      I did see something just today as I drove here, 9 

         the Kids Count on Michigan put out just a report that had to 10 

         be in the last few days, and there was in the last year that 11 

         they reported a 10 percent increase between '05 and '06 in 12 

         the number of teenagers who are both not in school and not 13 

         employed.  This number of teenagers is considered this kind 14 

         of lost student, because they're neither in school or in a 15 

         job.  And they now number 46,000 in Michigan, up 4,000 from 16 

         just the year before.  I mean, this is a frightening 17 

         statistic to think of 46,000 teenagers who are literally 18 

         lost out there neither in education or employment.  And I 19 

         hope that the result of these hearings and what we can bring 20 

         to Lansing is going to do something to address this problem.  21 

         But thank you all for your participation. 22 

                      MR. PRATT:  Steve? 23 

                      MR. COOK:  Well, I want to thank everybody for the 24 

         folks who provided the testimony and also the folks that 25 
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         just because they were interested came here and perhaps 1 

         didn't give testimony but just were interested in the 2 

         subject.  And I want to thank you guys for staying until the 3 

         very end.   4 

                      There were a couple of things that struck me, and 5 

         I did not get -- and she's reading a thing.  I did not get 6 

         your name. 7 

                      MS. SHARIFF:  Nayyirah. 8 

                      MR. COOK:  Nayyirah.  All right.  Because, well, I 9 

         didn't get what you did either.  I thought you said 10 

         sophomore engineer.  And I thought, "What in the world is 11 

         that?"  I got it now.  Software.  But you had one of those, 12 

         "Why didn't we think of that," at least for me, moments 13 

         about going to the -- going to a high school, going to some 14 

         of the schools and saying, you know, and talking to 15 

         dropouts.  So if you don't mind, if we can turn the tape 16 

         off, I'm going to turn that into my idea when this is over.  17 

         So I hope --  18 

                      MS. SHARIFF:  You sure can. 19 

                      MR. COOK:  I do that a lot.  But, no.  That's an 20 

         excellent idea.  And the other thing that struck me, you 21 

         know, and I think it's possible, this is the second hearing 22 

         that I've attended, and I think it's possible to set through 23 

         one of these and you hear successful program after 24 

         successful program after successful program.  And Renee from 25 


